CAMBRIDGE LICENSE COMMISSION HEARING

CITY OF CAMBRIDGE

IN RE: LICENSE COMMISSION HEARING

LICENSE COMMISSION BOARD MEMBERS:

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT B. LARRABEE

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY

AT: Michael J. Lombardi Building Carmelia M. Vicente Conference Room 831 Massachusetts Avenue Cambridge, Massachusetts 02139

DATE: August 16, 2017

TIME: 3:00 p.m.

_____REPORTERS, INC. _____CAPTURING THE OFFICIAL RECORD

617. 786. 7783 - www. reportersi nc. com

I NDEX OF AGENDA AGENDA MATTERS	<u>PAGE</u>
<u>VI OLATI O</u> N:	
LEAHY LANDSCAPING, INC.	5
I NFORMATI ONAL:	
WAGAMAMA BOSTON ONE, LLC D/B/A WAGAMAMA	11
APPLI CATI ONS:	
CAFE ARTSCIENCE, LLC	7
BON ME FOODS, LLC D/B/A O2	14
SHEWAYE MEKONNEN BELAY	20
PINTO RECYCLING, INC.	24
ZAMBRERO NE OPERATIONS, LLC D/B/A ZAMBRERO	25
MARSH POST 442 THE AMERICAN LEGION, INC.	32
ENTERPRISE RENT-A-CAR COMPANY OF BOSTON, LLC	51
PRESIDENT AND FELLOWS OF HARVARD COLLEGE FILE ARCHIVE	M 60
DISCUSSION OF MAY 10, 2014 LETTER FROM KIMBE COURTNEY	RLY 61

I NDEX_OF_AGENDA

AGENDA MATTERS	PAGE
<u>ONE-DAY_LI CENSE</u> S	
ARLYN DEPAGTER	63
AVI SHEMTOV	64
PADDY'S LUNCH, INC. D/B/A PADDY'S LUNCH	64
ARLYN DEPAGTER	65
WEILU SHEN	66
NORTH POINT CAFE, INC.	66
KRISTIN OBONE	68
BENJAMIN CARR	68
CYNTHI A GUEVARA	69
ANDREA MEISTER AND MAILKA PISZCZEK	70
JACKI E KEHOE	70

INDEX OF AGENDA	
AGENDA MATTERS	PAGE
NI COLA WILLIAM	71
SARAH DALE	72
450 KENDALL HOSPITALITY, LLC	
D/B/A GLASS HOUSE	73
BUWAD MI CKARCER	74
KAITLYN BLESSY	74
FREDERI CK BALBONI	75
ANDREA MEISTER	75

PROCEEDINGS

<u>August 16, 2017 - 3:00 p.m</u>

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: This is a hearing before the License Commission on Wednesday, August 16, 2017, 3 p.m. at 831 Mass Ave, Cambridge, Massachusetts, in the Carmelia Vicente Conference Room, and with us are the Commissioners Commissioner Brent Larrabee. This will be his last meeting. Thank you for your service.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: Thank you. Been fun.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Acting Fire Chief Gerard Mahoney and myself.

We are being audio and tape recorded.

VIOLATION: LEAHY LANDSCAPING, INC.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: No. 1, Leahy

Landscaping, Inc. for alleged violations of

Cambridge Municipal Ordinances 8.16.081.2(a),

operating during a prohibited period and

8.16.081.2(c), operating without a permit on July

25, 2017 at approximately 8:50 a.m. at 1 Rogers

Street. They actually filed a waiver of hearing

admitting to the violation.

Now, provided this is the first time that they were noticed and they didn't receive the usual warning letter, I would vote violation warning on this.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT LARRABEE: I agree.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: I agree.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Violation warning.

APPLICATION: CAFE ARTSCIENCE, LLC

matter on the agenda is Cafe Artscience, LLC, holder of a common victualler all alcohol license at 650 East Kendall Street has applied for a change of beneficial interest, transfer of stock and change of manager.

Good afternoon. Could you please state and spell your names for the record?

ATTY KRISTEN SCANLON: Good afternoon,

Madam Chair and Members of the Board.

Kristen, K-R-I-S-T-E-N, Scanlon,
S-C-A-N-L-O-N, attorney for the licensee. With
me, and seated to my right, is David Edwards.
D-A-V-I-D E-D-W-A-R-D-S.

DAVID EDWARDS: That's me.

ATTY KRISTEN SCANLON: As you know, we're here before you this afternoon on a change of manager of record from Todd Maul to David

Edwards, who has been, since the beginning, when this restaurant opened, the majority owner.

As the board, I'm sure is aware, sometimes in the restaurant industry, people move onto other companies, which is the reason for the change in manager of record.

With that being said, Mr. Edwards is at the premises for the most part, full-time, 35 to 40 hours per week.

When we submitted this application to you back in June, we were in the process of seeking out a new bar manager to replace Todd Maul, but in the interim, obviously, wanted to get their record straight and have someone on the license, on the premises, that is familiar with the service and sale of alcohol.

With that being said, we'll probably be before you soon again because they hired just last week a new manager for the spot, but as I

said, we just wanted to make sure the record reflected appropriately who was in charge with Todd's departure from the company.

Also, with Todd's departure from the company, a few essentially housekeeping matters with respect to the ownership interest, there were 12 LLC members. Now there will be 11.

There's a reallocation of the shares to the same members that existed since the inception of the company, and with that being said, just the removal of the LLC manager position for Todd Maul and Robert Carson, leaving David Edwards as the only LLC manager.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: This will not change any of the operation or anything, correct?

DAVID EDWARDS: It will not.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Mr. Edwards, you have never been a manager of record on a

liquor license before?

DAVID EDWARDS: I have not.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Are you familiar with the rules and regulations of this board, the ABCC and the laws of the Commonwealth of Mass with regard to the sale and service of alcohol?

DAVID EDWARDS: Yes.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Do you understand we expect you to stay up to date with those rules, laws and regulations?

DAVID EDWARDS: Yes.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Are you TIPS certified or 21 Proof certified?

DAVID EDWARDS: Yes.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Questions?

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: No.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: No.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in

favor of this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in

opposition to this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I would vote to grant.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY:

Granted.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: Granted.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

Thank you.

ATTY KRI STEN SCANLON: Thank you.

INFORMATIONAL: WAGAMAMA BOSTON ONE, LLC

D/B/A WAGAMAMA

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER:

Informational hearing on Wagamama Boston One,

LLC, d/b/a Wagamama, holder of a common

victualler wine and malt license at 57 JFK Street

for non-use of license pursuant to Mass General

Laws Chapter 138, Section 77.

Good afternoon. Please state and spell your name for the record?

ATTY RYAN GAZDA: Good afternoon, Madam
Chair and Members of the Board. Atty Ryan Gazda,
R-Y-A-N G-A-Z-D-A on behalf of Wagamama Boston
One, LLC.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you. When did they close?

ATTY RYAN GAZDA: They closed on July 9.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Of this

year?

ATTY RYAN GAZDA: This year.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Why did they close?

ATTY RYAN GAZDA: I'm not entirely sure of the reason they closed.

I know they are in the process of working with the landlord to potentially keep the license at the same location.

Their lease ended at the end of August, so they have been going through that process now, but given this is a license they purchased, I believe just a few short years ago, they are also entertaining the idea of potentially transferring it to a third party at a different location.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Okay.

ATTY RYAN GAZDA: So, with that in mind, I know they are respectfully requesting a 60-day period to work through that process and get back to the Board.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I would actually grant a six month because that's the minimum that basically -- the minimum time that's

considered a reasonable amount of time.

ATTY RYAN GAZDA: I'm sure they won't be opposed.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I would say six months. Cancellation in six months.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: I would agree.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT LARRABEE: Concur.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you.

APPLICATION: BON ME FOODS, LLC

D/B/A 02

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Bon Me
Foods, LLC, d/b/a 02, has applied for a common
victualler license at 60 Binney Street with a
seating capacity of 45 inside and 48 seasonal
patio seats on private property and proposed
hours of 10:30 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. seven days

Rachel Bock as proposed manager of record of a premise described at 2,097 square feet ground floor space, storage and food prep area, customer queuing and seating space and restrooms. Outdoor seating on private property.

Good afternoon. Please state and spell your name for the record?

MICHAEL FEENEY: Good afternoon. My name is Michael M-I-C-H-A-E-L. Last name F-E-E-N-E-Y. And I'm the operations manager for the applicant Bon Me Foods, LLC. And Bon Me was founded in 2011. We have Asian-inspired counter-service food.

The founders and owners, Patrick Lynch and Alison Fong continue to oversee the day-to-day operations of the company.

We operate two other restaurants in Cambridge and one food truck on the campus of Harvard.

And this new Location is at the Lab and Office Development on Binney Street.

We'll be offering the same counter-service setup and a similar menu to the other locations and we feel that the restaurant will be an asset to the workers and residents in that area.

A couple administrative things: The d/b/a that's listed on the hearing agenda, it is just going to be d/b/a Bon Me. I think the "02" was a typographical error on my part.

There are no legal abutters to the property, and I have a letter that I can hand to the Chair stating that.

The manager of record, there's just a change of plan since we submitted to the Board and that will be a different person.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Who is it going to be?

MI CHAEL FEENEY: Her name is Ayzhamal Sayakbaeva.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: We'll need a spelling of that.

MICHAEL FEENEY: I'm guessing you will.

First name A-Y-Z-H-A-M-A-L. Last name

S-A-Y-A-K-B-A-E-V-A.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And will her email be her first name @bonmetruck.com?

MI CHAEL FEENEY: You got it.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: The

licensing information and permits and bills, are
they going to mike@bonmetruck?

MI CHAEL FEENEY: Yes.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: So I'll keep that.

MI CHAEL FEENEY: Yes.

And the hours we would ask that they be amended to be until 9 p.m. rather than 8 p.m.

CHAIR NI COLE MURATI FERRER: Seven days a week?

MI CHAEL FEENEY: Seven days a week.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And opening at 10:30 a.m.?

MI CHAEL FEENEY: Correct.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Are you guys taking over a space?

MICHAEL FEENEY: It is a new build, so we will be the first tenant there, yep.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Now, I see in your -- that you applied for 45 seats inside and the floor plan has a total occupancy of 58, so we are saying about 13 people standing?

MI CHAEL FEENEY: Yeah.

And I'm not sure of the rules exactly but that might include employees, too.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Only if they are standing in the public areas.

MICHAEL FEENEY: Okay, okay, then yes, yeah, that would account for people in line and so forth.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And the outside door seating is 48?

MI CHAEL FEENEY: Yep.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And that's on private property?

MI CHAEL FEENEY: Correct.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Okay. All

right. Questions?

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: Nope.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: Nope.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in

favor of this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in opposition to this petition?

(No response.)

to grant with a change for the d/b/a to Bon Me.

Change of manager of record to the woman's name.

And the hours of operation 10:30 a.m.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: Could you repeat her name?

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I will not even try. I do not want to butcher her name.

With the amended hour of 9 p.m. closing time.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: Concur.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: Yes.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

Thank you and I'll take that. Thank you.

APPLICATION: SHEWAYE MEKONNEN BELAY

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Application,

Shewaye Mekonnen Belay has applied for a new

Cambridge Hackney driver's license.

SHEWAYE MEKONNEN BELAY: Yes.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Did I

totally butcher your name?

SHEWAYE MEKONNEN BELAY: S-H-E-W-A-Y-E

last name B-E-L-A-Y.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you.

Is Mekonnen your middle name?

SHEWAYE MEKONNEN BELAY: Yes.

CHAIR NI COLE MURATI FERRER: Good

afternoon. Have you ever been a driver before, a taxi driver before?

SHEWAYE MEKONNEN BELAY: No. My own car.
This is my first time.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: You are planning to --

SHEWAYE MEKONNEN BELAY: To drive a taxi.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: A taxi -- so your personal car you plan to make into a taxi?

SHEWAYE MEKONNEN BELAY: No. I'm going

to take over from somebody. One of my friends.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: So one of your friends has a medallion?

SHEWAYE MEKONNEN BELAY: Yes.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And you are going to drive --

SHEWAYE MEKONNEN BELAY: Drive his car.

CHAIR NI COLE MURATI FERRER: Okay, okay.

Do you know the medallion number, by any chance?

SHEWAYE MEKONNEN BELAY: Not really.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Do you know your friend's name?

SHEWAYE MEKONNEN BELAY: No.

So my friend's friend, he told me to take out first the license and then my friend will call for me that guy.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Do you know the name of the company at all?

SHEWAYE MEKONNEN BELAY: The Yellow Cab Company.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I see your driver's license was issued in 2010. Is that correct?

SHEWAYE MEKONNEN BELAY: 2010.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Have you driven?

SHEWAYE MEKONNEN BELAY: Yes.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I only ask because your record is literally the cleanest record I have seen in my life. I wanted to make sure you actually drove.

I am going to ask you a question and I apologize, it's actually a question pursuant to our ordinance: Can you read and write English?

SHEWAYE MEKONNEN BELAY: Yes.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: Okay.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Based on that, I would vote to grant.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: I vote to grant.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: Uh-huh.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: It has been granted. You will get a call from Officer Benny Szeto to come in and meet with him with regard to Hackney stuff and to pick up your license.

SHEWAYE MEKONNEN BELAY: Okay. Thank you so much.

APPLICATION: PINTO RECYCLING INC.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Pinto Recycling, Inc has applied for a wastewater hauler license to operate in the city.

Pinto Recycling?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Second call.

APPLICATION: ZAMBRERO NE OPERATIONS, LLC
D/B/A ZAMBRERO

Operations, LLC, d/b/a Zambrero has applied for a common victualler license at 71 Mt. Auburn Street with a seating capacity of 16 inside and an occupancy of 36, with proposed hours of 11 a.m. to 12 a.m., seven days.

Steven Anderson as proposed manager of record of a premise described as approximately 1,001 square feet with kitchen, food prep, storage, and ADA compliant bathroom facilities. Two entrances and exits.

Good afternoon. Please state and spell your names for the record.

ATTY KEVIN CRANE: My name is Attorney

Kevin K-E-V-I-N Crane C-R-A-N-E. I represent the petitioner. My address is at 104 Mt. Auburn Street in Cambridge.

STEVEN ANDERSON: Steven Anderson, S-T-E-V-E-N A-N-D-E-R-S-O-N.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you.

ATTY KEVIN CRANE: Madam Chair and Commissioners, my client is looking to go into the location that was just recently vacated by Boloco on 71 Mt. Auburn Street, which is a Mexican restaurant.

My client is an Australian-based entity and this is their first venture in the United States.

They are an Australian company that sells Mexican food.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I was just going to say, I was excited for a moment, I was like, Oh, I got confused.

in the past couple months, people have asked me when the punch line was gonna come. But when you think about it, I guess Australians can have Mexican food.

They have substantial holdings. 160 restaurants between Australia, New Zealand, Thailand and Ireland.

They are a philanthropic entity. They donate a meal for every one that they sell. It is called "Mexican with a Mission." At this particular location, which has always been food on this particular stretch of Mt. Auburn Street, which was important, particularly when we were before the Board of Zoning Appeals, we received a fastfood order Special Permit from the BZA in July. In conjunction with those proceedings, the Harvard Square Advisory Committee issued a letter in support of our petition.

And for the record, I would like to actually submit a copy of the letter, if that's okay.

CHAIR NI COLE MURATI FERRER: Yep. Thank you.

ATTY KEVIN CRANE: I have submitted a copy of the proposed menu as well as a copy of the lease assignment from the present tenant to my client with the landlord consenting.

The hours of operation that we request are from 11:00 in the morning until midnight.

There actually was, in front of the Advisory Committee, some feeling that we should almost stay open later, and my client will be considering that once they get going as far as how it fits into their operation, as far as food deliveries and staffing goes and also whether there's a market for it.

And Mr. Anderson is going to be the

manager and he can explain any further operational issues in particular to this operation.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Why don't you tell us a little about your concept.

STEVEN ANDERSON: Sure. So as Kevin said, Mexican with a Mission, so with every burrito or bowl we sell, we donate a meal to someone in need. We use a sous vide style method of cooking so there's no grease-laden vapor on site. We do no grilling, no baking. It is all done in a sous vide bath, which is water-based cooking.

We have three night deliveries a week.

It is a one-stop shop, and PFG, they deliver all our meats and all of our produce and paper goods.

Very simple. And it is very similar to what

Boloco had there before, but obviously, a much cleaner concept both operationally and as far as

the menu, burrito bowls, nachos, superfoods, avocado, Spirulina, we have black rice. Very interesting stuff.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you.

And Mr. Crane, 16 sitting, total occupancy of 36, calculating about 20 standing?

ATTY KEVIN CRANE: Yes.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Questions?

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: No.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Is it okay if we change the license description? Do you have storage in the rear of the premises? Where is your storage or do you have basement storage?

STEVEN ANDERSON: The only storage is behind the counter. Nothing in the basement.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: So would it be fair to say, and I crafted this based on the floor plan you submitted, one room on the first floor with kitchen in the rear, kitchen and

storage in the rear?

ATTY KEVIN CRANE: Yes.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Okay, so we would amend the premises description to read that way.

ATTY KEVIN CRANE: Okay.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Any

questi ons?

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY:

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in

favor of this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in

opposition to this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Okay. Vote to grant.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: Concur. CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.
Thank you.

ATTY KEVIN CRANE: Commissioner Larrabee, is this the last time we're gonna see you?

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: I believe so.

ATTY KEVIN CRANE: As a Cambridge citizen, I want to thank you for your service.

LARRABEE: Thank you.

APPLICATION: MARSH POST 442

THE AMERICAN LEGION, INC.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Marsh Post 442, The American Legion, Inc., holder of an all alcohol club license at 0 Gerry's Landing has applied for an entertainment license to include dancing by patrons, DJ, live music with and without amplification, audio tape machine, CD,

computerized media playing music below, at, or above conversation level.

Good afternoon.

CHARLES LINEHAN: Good afternoon.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Please state and spell your last name for the record?

CHARLES LINEHAN: L-I-N-E-H-A-N. Charles Linehan.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you

Mr. Linehan, this entertainment license would be

for the inside, right? You are not seeking also

for outside entertainment?

CHARLES LINEHAN: Yes, we are. We have an entertainment license currently and this is basically an amendment to add live music.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Okay.

CHARLES LINEHAN: On occasi on.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: The way that this was applied, it was to -- I see to amend and

to add recorded and live music, dancing and DJ, did you notice your abutters?

CHARLES LINEHAN: Yes, we did. I have a folder for you. I'll take it upstairs.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I'll take

and a letter, and we notified, which we determined to be three abutters; however, I believe we have no abutters, but we notified Cambridge Boathouse, the Winsor School Boathouse and Buckingham Brown and Nichols school. It is all there. It speaks for itself.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And the area where you would have the music and the dancing and DJ outside, that's DCR property?

CHARLES LINEHAN: That's correct.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Do you have their permission in use that area for live music?

CHARLES LINEHAN: We have been using it for 12 years --

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Okay.

CHARLES LINEHAN: -- so I would have to say they have no objection to it.

CHAIR NI COLE MURATI FERRER: Do you have --

CHARLES LINEHAN: If I may?

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Of course.

CHARLES LINEHAN: When the live music is there, it is seldom there's live music, and when it is there, there's a State Police detail, there are permits which are obtained from the DCR.

There are State Police details. They have the DCR Trash and Rubbish Department.

Occasionally they have DCR rangers and whatever else. So everything else basically goes through DCR, you know, for that.

Like I say, we have approximately maybe

five to six of those live music type of things outside.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Okay.

CHARLES LINEHAN: Also, for the record, I would like to say we have a 2 a.m. license and we cut this off at 11 p.m. to just satisfy anyone that may be strolling around the river, just so there's no confusion, and we do -- there's usually some type of sound engineer present that controls, you know, that -- he doesn't control it, but he monitors the decibel and all of this for some of the music.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Questions?

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: No.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: So you are seeking a license for outside entertainment on a property you don't

CHARLES LINEHAN: That's correct.

own?

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: Is there a lease?

CHARLES LINEHAN: There's --

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: The problem for me is, how do we license you to do something on something you have no ownership of?

CHARLES LINEHAN: Well, I mean --

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: The fact that you used it for 12 years --

CHARLES LINEHAN: Right. We're licensed to serve alcohol on the premises. We have an area fenced in.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT LARRABEE: Don't go too far.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I think -- I agree with the Commissioner here, I think I have no issue in terms of dealing with this inside.

In terms of outside, I wouldn't vote on it today.

I would ask you to submit something from your landlord saying the outside area that you are seeking to have this entertainment would be fine.

Is the landlord here?

CHARLES LINEHAN: No.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY:

Charlie, what do they have? Do they have like a 99-year lease?

CHARLES LINEHAN: Yeah, it is one of these things where you --

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: It has been --

CHARLES LINEHAN: I don't want to get into certain things unopened. I would rather talk in closed --

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: It has been there. How long has Marsh Post been there?

CHARLES LINEHAN: 60 years, and this basically has been, you know, going on, and right, it's one of these 99. I haven't been around this long. I'm not suggesting 99 years. But forever. I have only taken over the last four or five years.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: He says they have a license. They use the outside six times a year, but if you want to issue a pending, I would issue a pending confirmation --

issue is, for example, I know that recently there was an event that needed to be cancelled because they had no permits from anyone, including DCR.

So I am -- I would be hesitant in approving the outdoor space until we get something from DCR that either says yes, they can use the outside even if they have to apply with us five times a year, or something that says that

they have some type of permission to use that property, otherwise, I mean, quite frankly, I have no issue including this entertainment inside your premises at all.

Like, I would vote on that today. I know that they have authority to be inside.

CHARLES LINEHAN: Can we get that, keep it open, get the inside today for upcoming events until we have time to approach the DCR authorities and get that taken care of?

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: I would support that.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Yeah. I mean, I would have no issue with the inside amendment today, yes, of course, but... anything else?

I'm looking through -- I'm listening to
you and looking through your file because I have
your actual file and I'm trying to see if we have

a lease or something from DCR.

CHARLES LINEHAN: You don't. You don't.

And you know, that could take, you know, who knows, if they ever, you know, get one.

It's like you say, you have granted us, you know, permission to sell.

to say that we can't give you a blanket approval to use the outside, let's say that they say that, but they say you can still apply for every time you want outside for events, those five to six events that you have a year, that you have to apply to DCR to get, permission to use the space, you would have to submit with us a one-day request to extend your entertainment license to the outside, okay, and we could vote on that, on those five to six events.

CHARLES LINEHAN: That's the problem we had. I thought she would be here, Andrea. Where

sometimes we get notified maybe this afternoon where someone wants to use it Friday night or Sunday, you know, what I'm -- within a short period of time and we don't have time, you know, to get these permits, you know, within a two- or three-day notice.

That's why we are here today to get, you know, the extended one which we explained to them that's how we had to do it.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: Is there anybody you deal with specifically at DCR for issues that serves like as a liaison almost to you?

CHARLES LINEHAN: Not really.

You know, I can find this out, we have a commander and all of that. But we never have any issues. You know, that's the problem. I mean, the issue we have is this --

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: It is

not a problem.

CHARLES LINEHAN: -- the septic system back ups, we call DCR, great, and they come down and fix it at no expense to the city. And like you say, how this came about, and you said we had a thing cancelled, I was going on vacation, we had an event with outside live music, like I say, which has been going on for 12 years, it's the Somerville Striders, it is a running race, they have permits, DCR, State Police and the whole works and they run the 5K around the pond, okay? 12 years, this has been going on, you know, five times, it runs from May to June. On July 27, there was one of these races scheduled, unbeknownst to anybody, we get approached by the city saying "Oh, you can't have this. You don't have a permit for it."

And honestly, I was blindsided.

"We don't have a permit for it?"

"The City of Cambridge said you have to have a permit."

This started the ball rolling. Meanwhile

I was going three days from when I was notified

on vacation, I was going away for a few weeks,

and we rushed and we did everything we had to do,

as much as going over and see Lieutenant Jim

Donovan from the State Police over at, you know,

DCR who just, you know, they signed off on this

stuff saying you know, "Yeah, what's the

problem?"

So, yeah, if you could be so kind as to issue the inside, you know, for now, and, you know, I'll try to notify DCR and just tell me what you need. You want a letter from them saying that you don't object?

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I think I would need a letter or something from DCR saying that Marsh Post has the authority to use this

area.

CHARLES LINEHAN: The patio.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: The patio area.

CHARLES LINEHAN: We have it fenced off.

We don't go on the roadway. We don't go down the water level. The field has been fenced off.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: As long as you have something from DCR, whether it's a lease or a letter saying that they provide you permission to use the outdoor area, then that's fine because then we can issue the license to extend to that outdoor area, but without having something from the property owner providing you permission to give entertainment in that outdoor area, we can't really license it.

With that said, anyone in favor of this petition?

(No audi ble response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in opposition -- please, sir, if you can come up and state your name, please.

ANTONIO ALVES: My name is Antonio Alves,

A-L-V-E-S. I'm in favor of the petition. I'm

actually a member of The Post, and like I say,

Charlie said, The Post has been -- they have for

over 60 years. We never had any problems as far

as when we had any entertainment there. So I

don't -- I'm also an officer of The Post.

We were hoping you would be able to grant us the petition for the change. Even though you know we are on DCR property, there seems to be a problem between licensing things for Cambridge and licensing things for the State, so...

But I am in favor of the petition to allow it.

CHAIR NI COLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you.

Anyone else?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in opposition to this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: With that said, I would vote to grant the amendment for the inside of the premises.

And I would vote to change that vote administratively to the outside, if we get a letter from them, so I wouldn't have them come back for a hearing if they have a letter of proof from DCR that they are able to provide this live entertainment on their patio.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: I concur with that.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT LARRABEE: I concur.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Yes, sir?

CHARLES LINEHAN: So what you just said

was the live entertainment? Say we had a radio or some type of other thing in the interim on the patio?

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: No. What I meant --

CHARLES LINEHAN: I just want to be clear.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I'm sorry.

All of your entertainment right now is just for the inside of the premises, okay, for your four walls.

you are able to provide all of this entertainment on the outside, on the patio that you have, then we are able to change that to include -- or able to change your entertainment license to include the outside so that you can provide the entertainment outside, but as of right now, and as of when we sign this, you will only be able to

provide the entertainment within the confines of the inside of the building.

If you have any events between now and whenever you get something from the DCR --

CHARLES LINEHAN: You want the one-day permit?

says "Absolutely not. We are not going to give you permission except on a one-time basis," so every time you have entertainment outside, you must also get a license from us or permission from us so we would extend your entertainment license for that outside area, okay?

CHARLES LINEHAN: And how much time will we have to get that?

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: How much time will you have for -- I'm sorry?

CHARLES LINEHAN: Get the extended outside license if DCR says "no," the one-day

permit.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: So we tell people to please submit those applications at least two weeks before the events because we have to vote on them at public meetings like this, and we tend to meet every other week.

Some months we meet every week but -- I
mean, back-to-back weeks but we tend to meet only
twice a month.

CHARLES LINEHAN: So anything shorter than two weeks you can't do?

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: We can try
to assist you because we have done it where
things have come up at the last minute and people
are granted permits.

But it should be done -- we tell people, and so for you, as a licensee, what we suggest to licensees and put on your websites, to put on whatever curricular you send out to people, that

when they want to rent out your premises or have events, to tell you in advance because you need permits from the City or State.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: My suggestion would be to put on there you folks need three weeks' notice, and that would give you -- I mean, yeah, I know on occasion you get "Hey, can we use The Post Friday night for..."

CHARLES LINEHAN: We don't have that many music. They are planned ahead of time.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: Right.

CHARLES LINEHAN: Most of them. As you say, you never know when something comes up.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you.

CHARLES LI NEHAN: Thank you.

APPLICATION: ENTERPRISE RENT-A-CAR OF BOSTON, LLC

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Application

Enterprise Rent-a-Car of Boston, LLC has applied

for a letting of motor vehicles license at 1815 Mass Ave for six vehicles.

Good afternoon. Please state and spell your name for the record.

BECKY MARCINKEVICH: Becky Marcinkevich

B-E-C-K-Y M-A-R-C-I-N-K-E-V-I-C-H. I'm a

regional operations manager for Enterprise

Rent-a-Car.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Too fast for me. M-A --

BECKY MARCI NKEVI CH:

M-A-R-C-I-N-K-E-V-I-C-H.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: You guys are going into a Lesley building?

BECKY MARCINKEVICH: University Hall.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Will you be the contact person for any licensing and permitting issue?

BECKY MARCINKEVICH: Yes, I will.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Okay. And are you also going to be the store manager? Do you have another store manager.

BECKY MARCINKEVICH: I will not be the store manager. Bobby Williams, with me here today, he's the area manager and he oversees the Cambridge, Arlington, Lexington territory.

And then there will be a -- then will be a different store manager working there every day.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Do we have the name of that person?

BECKY MARCINKEVICH: We do not.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: So when we have the name of that person, we'll need the name of that person, and phone number, and email.

BECKY MARCI NKEVI CH: Okay.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And Mr. Williams, what is your email.

ROBERT WILLIAMS: It's

robert.williams@ehi.com.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Okay. Thank

you. Questions?

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: I have none.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: No.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in

favor of this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in

opposition to this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I would vote

to grant.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: Concur.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: Yes.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you.

BECKY MARCINKEVICH: And here is the affidavit.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Mr.

Williams, do you have another number that's not the one listed?

ROBERT WILLIAMS: Yup. 617-733-2877.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you.

BECKY MARCI NKEVI CH: Thank you.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you.

ROBERT WILLIAMS: Thank you.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you.

We are moving onto administrative matters.

(Pause.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Are you guys here for anything in particular?

MELISSA SCLAFANI: We are with Pinto Recycling. We needed a hauler permit.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: We called you already. Come on up.

Second call for Pinto Recycling.

APPLICATION: PINTO RECYCLING INC.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Good afternoon. Please state and spell your names for the record.

MELISSA SCLAFANI: My name is

M-E-L-I-S-S-A. Last name is S-C-L-A-F-A-N-I.

This is the owner of the company William Pinto,

W-I-L-L-I-A-M P-I-N-T-O.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you.

And based on your application I saw that you guys
just do roll-offs?

MELISSA SCLAFANI: Yes.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: It is on a contract basis, you don't have a particular route right now or anything?

MELISSA SCLAFANI: No. It's just someone does demolition and they call us.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Okay, all

right. I see everything else is here.

Do you guys have questions?

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: I have none.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in

favor of this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Anyone in

opposition to this petition?

(No response.)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: I vote to

grant.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY:

Granted.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: Concur.

ROBERT WILLIAMS: Awesome.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you.

If you wait, I can give this to you and you can go upstairs.

MELISSA SCLAFANI: I'll take a seat and we'll hang out.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: No, right now.

MELISSA SCLAFANI: Oh, right now? I didn't know if you needed a minute.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Go to the staff and ask them to help you right now.

MELISSA SCLAFANI: Perfect. Thank you very much.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Are you guys in here for anything in particular?

DAVID MCCALL: I was here for the Leahy

I eaf blower that you did first, but I didn't want
to interrupt the meeting. I wanted to have a

chance to meet and speak with you after the

meeting just to say hello. I'm David McCall.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Thank you.

And, ma'am, are you here for anything in particular?

UNI DENTI FI ED AUDI ENCE MEMBER: No.

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

450 KENDALL HOSPITALITY, LLC

D/B/A GLASS HOUSE

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Moving onto administrative matters, 450 Kendall Hospitality, LLC, d/b/a Glass House has applied for a one-day license to sell food and beverages at Genzyme on August 31 from 2 to 4:30 p.m. for 60 people. The event will be alongside their establishment on private property.

You know -- they got moved around. Yeah, they got moved around. You know what, let's skip that for a moment. I'm sorry.

PRESIDENT AND FELLOWS OF HARVARD COLLEGE

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: President and Fellows of Harvard College Film Archive, holder of license number ENTO0185, has applied for a one-day amendment to their existing license to screen movies until 8 a.m.

Actually, what they want to do is, their closing hour is at 11 p.m. and they want to do sort of an overnight film screening from 11 p.m. to 8 a.m. from September 2 to September 3.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: Okay.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And they went to Sergeant Kale (phonetic) and everything and they had no issue with that, so I would vote to grant.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY:
Granted.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT LARRABEE: Concur.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: We received a letter on -- dated May 10, 2014 from Kimberly Courtney, we actually received it 2017. It is to the Commissioners.

I had personally forwarded this to the City Solicitor on my behalf since there are allegations therein with regard to my license as a licensed attorney. However, as Ms. Courtney very well pointed out in a recent email she sent to the entire Commission, I do not plan to respond to this as Chair of the Commission. I wanted to suggest to the Commission that we forward this to the City Solicitor, so the City Solicitor can answer on behalf of all three of us including the allegations for which I had originally mentioned.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: I would concur with that.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: On the advice of counsel, I would

forward it to the City Solicitor.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: It has been forwarded to the City Solicitor for a response.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT LARRABEE: I don't mean you as my counsel.

with that said, we received earlier today an email from Ms. Kimberly Courtney as well with regard to our vote and specifically my statements on last week's agenda item of August 9, and again, I would forward this to the City Solicitor for a response on behalf of the Board.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: I would concur with that.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: On the advice of counsel, I would do that also.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And even if it is not on behalf of the Board, I would forward it to her for my response. Thank you.

Moving on to one-day licenses.

ARLYN DEPAGTER

MI T

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Arlyn

dePagter has applied for a one-day malt and wine

license for a reception to be exercised at MIT,

100 Main Street on August 25 from 11:30 to 1

p.m. 136 expected. Granted.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: Which one?

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Arlyn dePagter on August 25 from 11:30 a.m.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: I don't have that.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: You want the one-day licenses?

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: Could I, please.

AVI SHEMTOV

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: We have Avi
Shemtov has applied for a one-day malt license
for a corporate team-building event to be
exercised at Alexandria Real Estate, 200
Technology Square on August 17 from 4:30 to 6:30
p.m. 100 expected.

Granted.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT LARRABEE: Concur.

RUTH ALLEN

D/B/A PADDY'S LUNCH, INC.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: We have one from Ruth Allen for the Paddy's 5K road race at 260 Walden Street. This is for a malt license and also entertainment with patrons dancing, recorded, live music and amplification system.

7 a.m. to 6 p.m. and 11 a.m. to 6 p.m. for the beer garden.

This went through Special Events.

I vote to grant.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY:

Granted.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: Concur.

ARLYN DEPAGTER

MI T

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Arlyn dePagter has applied for a one-day malt and wine license for a reception to be exercised at MIT,

100 Main Street on September 6 from 12 to 1 p.m. 90 expected. Granted.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: Agree.

WEILU SHEN

HARVARD UNI VERSI TY

chair Nicole Murati Ferrer: Weilu Shen has applied for a one-day malt and wine with entertainment license for a party to be exercised at Dudley House, Lehman Hall, Harvard University on August 25 from 7 to 1 a.m. with patrons dancing, recorded, live music and amplification system. 200 expected.

Granted. Police detail required.

CHRISTINE BRAGA

NORTH POINT CAFE, INC.

D/B/A LINGO

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Christine

Braga, North Point Cafe, Inc., d/b/a Lingo.

Christine Braga, holder of a common victualer all alcohol license at 8 Education Street has applied for a one-day malt and wine license for a family day BBQ to be exercised at Education Circle on August 19. 100 expected.

I would actually vote to deny this

license. They have no Special Events approval,

they have no city permits, and they are planning

to do this on city property and the city has not

issued any permits and have told her they can't

issue any permits, so I would vote to deny.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: I would deny.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT LARRABEE: Concur.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Denied.

BENJAMIN CARR

I ZOTOPE, INC.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Benjamin

Carr on behalf of Izotope, Inc., has applied for a one-day entertainment license for a company

family BBQ to be exercised at North Plaza Kendall

Square on August 18 from 10 to 4 with recorded,

live music. 200 expected.

I would vote to grant. It is an entertainment license.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT LARRABEE: Concur.

KRISTIN OBONE (phonetic)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Kristin

Obone has applied for an entertainment license

for performers dancing, recorded, live music,

amplification and theatrical show at MIT musical

theater on September 1 through September 7

through the 9th, September 14th through the 16th at 8 a.m. to 11 and 2 p.m. to 5 p.m.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY:

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Granted.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

CYNTHIA GUEVARA

LARRABEE: Concur.

Concur.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Cynthia

Guevara has applied for an entertainment license

for a fundraiser to be exercised at University

Park, 23 Sidney Street on August 25 from 12 to 2

p. m. with recorded, live music. 100 expected.

Granted at University Park. They have a park

permit.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT
LARRABEE: Concur.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY:

Concur.

ANDREA MEISTER

MI T

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Andrea

Meister and Mailka Piszczek has applied for an
entertainment license for a party to be exercised
at MIT, 3 Ames Street on August 27 at 8 to 1 a.m.
with patrons dancing, recorded, live music,
amplification system and dynamic audio, visual
show live, recorded. 400 expected.

Granted. Police detail required.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: Concur.

JACKI E KEHOE

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And we have an entertainment license for recorded, live music for Jackie Kehoe, has applied for an

entertainment license for a 10th annual block
party to be exercised at Chilton Street, between
Huron Ave and Vassal Lane, on September 9 with
rain date of September 10 from 4 to 7 p.m. with
recorded, live music. 60 expected.

They have permits in the city. The permit is from 8 a.m. through 10 p.m.

They have requested their entertainment license from 4 p.m. to 7. I would issue this from 3 p.m. so they can do sound checks and people wouldn't complain it is beyond the hours, so I would amend it to be from 3 p.m. to 7 p.m.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: Concur.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: Concur.

NI COLA WILLIAM

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Nicola

William on behalf of the Cambridge Carnival
International, Inc., has applied for an
entertainment license for a festival and parade
to be exercised at Central and Kendall Square on
September 10 with rain date of September 24 from
12 to 7 p.m. with patrons, performers,
entertainers dancing, recorded, live music and
amplification system. 50,000 expected.

I would vote to grant. They have Special Events and all city permits.

SARAH DALE

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Sarah Dale has applied for a one-day malt and wine license for a reception to be exercised at Kendall Square Roof Garden, 90 Broadway on August 31 from 6 to 8 p.m. 100 expected.

I would vote to grant.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: Concur.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY:
Concur.

450 KENDALL HOSPITALITY, LLC
D/B/A GLASS HOUSE

a bunch of -- one, two, three, four, for 450

Kendall Glass House. They have applied for basically an end of summer party, food and beverage, beer and wine, on August 31 at the patio, on August 14 (sic) an MIT private property, on September 23 a private Oktoberfest party and on September 23, the entertainment of beer, food -- I mean entertainment for that private Oktoberfest.

I would vote to grant as to all and just mention that the beer and wine would be issued pursuant to Section 14 of 138.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: Concur.

BUWAD MICKARCER (PHONETIC)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: And I have some add-ons.

Buwad Mickarcer, on behalf of NNBBA, The
Loading Dock, had applied for a banquet at
Harvard for wine on August 22 from 5 to 9.

Granted.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT
LARRABEE: Concur.

KAITLYN BLESSY (PHONETIC)

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Kaitlyn

Blessy has applied for an entertainment license
on August 16, patrons dancing, performers, live
music and amplification at Sennott Park and they
have the park permit as well.

Granted.

And they didn't apply for a specific hour, so I would put the hours consistent with the park permit hours, which are 4 p.m. to 9 p.m.

ANDREA MEISTER

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Andrea Misner we already granted this one.

FREDERICK BALBONE

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Frederick

Balboni or Balboni Communications Group has

applied for Italian-American Roman Catholic

Religious Festival, wine and malt license at the corner of Warren and Porter Streets in Cambridge on September 8, 9 and 10. This is apparently just added.

There's a police detail required. I would vote to grant pending proof of City of

Cambridge permits since they weren't attached to this.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY: Where is the location?

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Corner of
Warren and Porter Streets for the
Italian-American Roman Catholic Religious
Festival.

Granted pending city permits.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: Concur.

CHAIR NI COLE MURATI FERRER: And we also have July -- July 17. Was it the 17th? July 17 minutes to be approved.

ACTING FIRE CHIEF GERARD MAHONEY:

Approved.

INTERIM POLICE COMMISSIONER BRENT

LARRABEE: Approved.

CHAIR NICOLE MURATI FERRER: Approved.

	And that's it for us today.			
(Meeting adjourned)				

ERRATA SHEET

INSTRUCTIONS: After reading the transcript, note any change or correction and the reason therefor on this sheet. Sign and date this errata sheet.

PAGE LINE		
.,,,,,	CHANGE:	
	REASON:	
	CHANGE:	
	REASON:	
	CHANGE:	
	REASON:	
	CHANGE:	
	REASON:	
	CHANGE:	
	REASON:	
	CHANGE:	
	REASON:	
except for a I hereby sub	ny correc [.] scribe to	Foregoing transcript, and tions or changes noted above, the transcript as an e statement(s) made by

CERTI FI CATI ON

Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Norfolk, ss.

I, Jill Kourafas, a Notary Public in and for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, do hereby certify:

That the hearing herein before set forth is a true and accurate record of the proceedings.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 20th day of August 2017.

Jill Kourafas Certified Shorthand Reporter License No. 14903 Notary Public

THE FOREGOING CERTIFICATION OF THIS TRANSCRIPT DOES NOT APPLY TO ANY REPRODUCTION OF THE SAME IN ANY RESPECT UNLESS UNDER THE DIRECT CONTROL AND/OR DIRECTION OF THE CERTIFYING REPORTER

2014 [2] - 2:15, 61:4 **2017** [6] - 1:13, 5:2, 5:6, 6:5, **02** [3] - 2:7, 14:12, 14:14 61:5, 78:11 **02139** [1] - 1:12 **20th** [1] - 78:11 **21** [1] - 10:13 **22** [1] - 74:6 <u>1</u> [7] - 5:19, 6:5, 63:12, 65:19, **23** [3] - 69:11, 73:10, 73:11 66:10, 68:17, 70:6 **24** [1] - 72:3 **1,001** [1] - 25:13 **25** [5] - 6:5, 63:12, 63:17, 66:10, **10** [7] - 2:15, 61:4, 68:5, 71:2, 69:11 71:5, 72:3, 75:13 **260** [1] - 65:2 **100** [6] - 63:12, 64:12, 65:19, 67:5, **27** [2] - 43:12, 70:6 69:12, 72:15 **104** [1] - 26:1 **10:30** [3] - 14:18, 18:4, 20:4 <u>3</u> [5] - 5:6, 60:9, 70:6, 71:8, 71:10 **10th** [1] - 70:18 <u>31</u> [3] - 59:12, 72:14, 73:8 <u>11</u> [7] - 9:6, 25:9, 36:5, 60:7, **35** [1] - 8:7 60:8, 65:5, 68:19 <u>36</u> [2] - 25:9, 30:5 **11:00** [1] - 28:10 **3:00** [2] - 1:14, 5:2 **11:30** [2] - 63:12, 63:17 **12** [9] - 9:6, 25:10, 35:1, 37:9, 43:7, 43:11, 65:19, 69:11, 72:4 **4** [4] - 68:5, 71:2, 71:7, 75:1 **13** [1] - 18:13 **40** [1] - 8:8 **136** [1] - 63:13 **400** [1] - 70:9 **138** [2] - 12:4, 73:16 **442** [3] - 2:11, 32:11, 32:14 **14** [2] - 73:9, 73:16 **45** [2] - 14:16, 18:11 **14903** [1] - 78:14 **450** [5] - 4:4, 59:6, 59:9, 73:2, **14th** [1] - 68:18 **16** [6] - 1:13, 5:2, 5:6, 25:8, 30:4, **48** [2] - 14:16, 19:4 74:14 **4:30** [2] - 59:12, 64:11 **160** [1] - 27:5 **16th** [1] - 68:18 **17** [3] - 64:11, 76:10 <u>5</u> [2] - 68:19, 74:6 **17th** [1] - 76:10 **50,000** [1] - 72:6 **18** [1] - 68:5 **57** [1] - 12:2 **1815** [1] - 51:19 <u>58</u> [1] - 18:12 **19** [1] - 67:5 <u>5K</u> [2] - 43:10, 65:1 **2** [5] - 36:4, 59:12, 60:9, 68:19, **6** [4] - 65:5, 65:19, 72:14 69:11 **60** [5] - 14:15, 38:19, 46:7, 59:12, **2,097** [1] - 15:1 71:3 **20** [1] - 30:5 **60-day** [1] - 13:13 **200** [3] - 64:10, 66:12, 68:6 **617-733-2877** [1] - 55:5 **2010** [2] - 23:3, 23:5 **617.786.7783** [1] - 1:17 **2011** [1] - 15:11

```
47:13, 51:3, 51:10, 54:6, 54:17,
650 [1] - 7:4
                                           57:13, 58:4, 60:10, 60:15, 61:19,
6:30 [1] - 64:11
                                           62:16, 65:9, 66:2, 67:12, 69:1,
                                           69:17, 71:13, 72:19, 75:19, 76:12
                                          Acting [1] - 5:14
7 [7] - 65:5, 66:10, 68:17, 71:2,
71:7, 71:10, 72:4
                                          <u>actual</u> [1] - 40:18
<u>71</u> [2] - 25:7, 26:9
                                          ADA [1] - 25:14
<u>77</u> [1] - 12:4
                                          add [3] - 33:14, 33:19, 74:3
                                          <u>add-ons</u> [1] - 74:3
                                          added [1] - 75:14
8 [9] - 17:18, 60:5, 60:9, 67:2,
                                          address [1] - 26:1
68:19, 70:6, 71:5, 72:14, 75:13
                                          <u>adjourned</u> [1] - 76:18
8.16.081.2(a [1] - 6:2
                                          <u>administrative</u> [3] - 16:7, 55:11,
8.16.081.2(c [1] - 6:4
                                          59:9
831 [2] - 1:12, 5:6
                                          ADMINISTRATIVE [1] - 59:5
<u>8:00</u> [1] - 14:18
                                          administratively [1] - 47:8
8:50 [1] - 6:5
                                          admitting [1] - 6:7
                                          <u>advance</u> [1] - 51:1
                                          advice [2] - 62:3, 62:19
9 [8] - 12:13, 17:18, 20:9, 62:13,
                                          Advisory [2] - 27:17, 28:12
71:1, 74:6, 75:1, 75:13
                                          affidavit [2] - 34:6, 55:1
90 [2] - 66:1, 72:14
                                          afternoon [14] - 7:7, 7:9, 7:17,
99 [2] - 39:2, 39:3
                                          12:5, 12:7, 15:5, 15:7, 21:10,
99-year [1] - 38:9
                                           25:16, 33:2, 33:3, 41:19, 52:2,
9th [1] - 68:18
                                          AGENDA [6] - 2:1, 2:1, 3:1, 3:2,
                                           4:1, 4:1
<u>A-L-V-E-S</u> [1] - 46:4
                                          agenda [3] - 7:2, 16:8, 62:13
A-N-D-E-R-S-O-N [1] - 26:4
                                          ago [1] - 13:8
A-Y-Z-H-A-M-A-L [1] - 17:5
                                          agree [5] - 6:13, 6:15, 14:6, 37:17,
<u>a.m</u> [16] - 6:5, 14:18, 18:4, 20:4,
                                           66:2
 25:9, 25:10, 36:4, 60:5, 60:9,
                                          ahead [1] - 51:9
63:17, 65:5, 66:10, 68:19, 70:6,
                                          alcohol [6] - 7:3, 8:15, 10:6,
71:5
                                           32:15, 37:12, 67:2
ABCC [1] - 10:4
                                          <u>Alexandria</u> [1] - 64:10
<u>able</u> [6] - 46:10, 47:11, 48:12,
                                          <u>Alison</u> [1] - 15:14
 48:14, 48:18
                                          allegations [2] - 61:9, 61:17
Absolutely [1] - 49:7
                                          alleged [1] - 6:1
abutters [4] - 16:11, 34:1, 34:8,
                                          ALLEN [1] - 64:17
 34:9
                                          <u>Allen</u> [1] - 65:1
<u>account</u> [1] - 19:1
                                          allow [1] - 46:16
accurate [2] - 77:12, 78:9
                                          almost [2] - 28:13, 42:11
ACTING [38] - 1:8, 6:14, 10:16,
                                          alongside [1] - 59:13
11:8, 14:5, 19:11, 20:12, 24:5,
                                          ALVES [1] - 46:3
30:8, 31:8, 36:13, 38:7, 38:12,
                                          Alves [1] - 46:3
38:17, 39:6, 40:10, 42:9, 42:18,
```

```
amend [3] - 31:3, 33:18, 71:10
                                         approving [1] - 39:15
<u>amended</u> [2] - 17:18, 20:9
                                         ARCHIVE [1] - 2:14
<u>amendment</u> [4] - 33:14, 40:14, 47:5,
                                         Archive [1] - 60:2
                                         area [13] - 15:2, 16:6, 34:13,
60:4
AMERICAN [2] - 2:12, 32:12
                                          34:18, 37:13, 38:2, 44:19, 45:3,
<u>American</u> [3] - 32:14, 75:10, 76:4
                                          45:10, 45:12, 45:15, 49:12, 53:5
                                         areas [1] - 18:18
Ames [1] - 70:6
                                         <u>Arlington</u> [1] - 53:6
amount [1] - 13:19
amplification [7] - 32:18, 65:4,
                                         <u>Arlyn</u> [3] - 63:9, 63:16, 65:16
                                         ARLYN [4] - 3:4, 3:7, 63:7, 65:14
66:11, 68:16, 70:8, 72:6, 74:15
<u>AND</u> [3] - 2:14, 3:14, 59:19
                                         Artscience [1] - 7:2
<u>AND/OR</u> [1] - 78:17
                                         ARTSCIENCE [2] - 2:5, 6:19
Anderson [3] - 25:11, 26:3, 28:18
                                         Asian [1] - 15:11
ANDERSON [3] - 26:3, 29:5, 30:13
                                         Asian-inspired [1] - 15:11
<u>Andrea</u> [3] - 41:18, 70:3, 75:4
                                         asset [1] - 16:5
ANDREA [3] - 3:14, 70:1, 75:3
                                         assignment [1] - 28:7
annual [1] - 70:18
                                         assist [1] - 50:12
answer [1] - 61:16
                                         <u>AT</u> [1] - 1:11
ANTONIO [1] - 46:3
                                         <u>attached</u> [1] - 75:17
Antonio [1] - 46:3
                                         Attorney [1] - 25:18
<u>ANY</u> [2] - 78:17, 78:17
                                         attorney [2] - 7:12, 61:10
apologize [1] - 23:14
                                         Atty [1] - 12:8
Appeals [1] - 27:14
                                         ATTY [18] - 7:9, 7:16, 11:14, 12:7,
applicant [1] - 15:9
                                          12:13, 12:16, 12:19, 13:12, 14:1,
APPLICATION [7] - 6:19, 14:11,
                                          25:18, 26:6, 26:19, 28:5, 30:6,
                                          31:1, 31:5, 32:2, 32:6
20:16, 24:14, 32:11, 51:16, 56:2
                                         <u>Auburn</u> [4] - 25:7, 26:1, 26:9, 27:12
application [5] - 8:9, 20:17, 25:3,
                                         audible [1] - 45:18
51:17, 56:11
APPLICATIONS [1] - 2:4
                                         AUDIENCE [1] - 59:3
                                         <u>audio</u> [3] - 5:16, 32:18, 70:8
applications [1] - 50:2
applied [27] - 7:4, 14:14, 18:11,
                                         august [2] - 1:13, 5:2
 20:18, 24:16, 25:6, 32:16, 33:18,
                                         August [18] - 5:6, 13:5, 59:12,
 51:18, 59:10, 60:3, 63:10, 64:8,
                                          62:13, 63:12, 63:17, 64:11, 66:10,
 65:17, 66:7, 67:2, 68:2, 68:14,
                                          67:5, 68:5, 69:11, 70:6, 72:14,
 69:9, 70:4, 70:17, 71:19, 72:12,
                                          73:8, 73:9, 74:6, 74:14, 78:11
 73:6, 74:5, 74:13, 75:10
                                         Australia [1] - 27:6
APPLY [1] - 78:17
                                         Australian [2] - 26:11, 26:14
apply [4] - 39:17, 41:9, 41:12,
                                         Australian-based [1] - 26:11
74:18
                                         Australians [1] - 27:3
approach [1] - 40:8
                                         authorities [1] - 40:9
approached [1] - 43:14
                                         authority [2] - 40:5, 44:18
appropriately [1] - 9:1
                                         Ave [3] - 5:7, 52:1, 71:1
approval [2] - 41:7, 67:7
                                         <u>Avenue</u> [1] - 1:12
approved [4] - 76:11, 76:13, 76:15,
                                         AVI [2] - 3:5, 64:6
 76:16
                                         Avi [1] - 64:7
```

```
<u>avocado</u> [1] - 30:1
                                        beyond [1] - 71:9
<u>aware</u> [1] - 8:2
                                        bills [1] - 17:11
<u>awesome</u> [1] - 57:17
                                        Binney [2] - 14:15, 16:1
Ayzhamal [1] - 16:19
                                        black [1] - 30:1
                                        blanket [1] - 41:7
                                        BLESSY [2] - 4:7, 74:11
B-E-L-A-Y [1] - 21:5
                                        Blessy [1] - 74:13
back-to-back [1] - 50:7
                                        blindsided [1] - 43:17
baking [1] - 29:10
                                        block [1] - 70:18
BALBONE [1] - 75:7
                                        blower [1] - 58:15
BALBONI [1] - 4:8
                                        BOARD [1] - 1:5
<u>Balboni</u> [2] - 75:9
                                        Board [7] - 7:10, 12:8, 13:15,
ball [1] - 44:2
                                         16:15, 27:14, 62:15, 63:3
banquet [1] - 74:5
                                        board [2] - 8:2, 10:4
bar [1] - 8:11
                                        Boathouse [2] - 34:10
based [5] - 24:1, 26:11, 29:11,
                                        Bobby [1] - 53:4
30:16, 56:11
                                        Bock [1] - 14:19
basement [2] - 30:12, 30:14
                                        Boloco [2] - 26:9, 29:17
basis [2] - 49:8, 56:15
                                        BON [2] - 2:6, 14:11
bath [1] - 29:11
                                        Bon [5] - 14:13, 15:10, 16:9, 20:2
bathroom [1] - 25:14
                                        bonmetruck.com [1] - 17:8
BBQ [2] - 67:4, 68:4
                                        Boston [3] - 11:19, 12:9, 51:18
BECKY [10] - 52:4, 52:5, 52:10,
                                        BOSTON [3] - 2:13, 11:16, 51:16
52:14, 52:18, 53:3, 53:12, 53:16,
                                        bowl [1] - 29:7
54:19, 55:7
                                        bowls [1] - 29:19
Becky [1] - 52:4
                                        BRAGA [1] - 66:15
beer [4] - 65:6, 73:8, 73:12, 73:15
                                        Braga [2] - 66:19, 67:1
beginning [1] - 7:19
                                        Brent [1] - 5:9
behalf [8] - 12:9, 61:8, 61:16,
                                        BRENT [44] - 1:7, 5:12, 6:12, 10:17,
62:15, 63:3, 68:2, 71:18, 74:4
                                         11:10, 14:7, 19:12, 20:5, 20:10,
behind [1] - 30:14
                                         23:18, 24:3, 31:17, 32:4, 32:8,
BELAY [17] - 2:8, 20:16, 21:1, 21:4,
                                         36:14, 36:19, 37:3, 37:8, 37:14,
 21:8, 21:12, 21:16, 21:19, 22:4,
                                         47:15, 54:4, 54:15, 57:3, 57:15,
 22:7, 22:10, 22:13, 22:19, 23:5,
                                         60:17, 62:2, 62:7, 62:18, 63:14,
23:8, 23:16, 24:11
                                         63:18, 64:3, 64:14, 65:11, 67:14,
Belay [1] - 20:18
                                         68:9, 69:4, 69:15, 70:11, 71:11,
below [1] - 32:19
                                         72:17, 73:17, 74:8, 76:7, 76:14
beneficial [1] - 7:5
                                        Broadway [1] - 72:14
Benjamin [1] - 68:1
                                        Brown [1] - 34:11
                                        Buckingham [1] - 34:11
BENJAMIN [2] - 3:11, 67:18
Benny [1] - 24:8
                                        build [1] - 18:8
between [4] - 27:6, 46:13, 49:2,
                                        building [3] - 49:1, 52:13, 64:9
70:19
                                        Building [1] - 1:11
beverage [1] - 73:8
                                        bunch [1] - 73:5
beverages [1] - 59:11
                                        burrito [2] - 29:7, 29:19
```

```
13:11, 13:16, 14:3, 14:9, 14:13,
but.. [1] - 40:14
                                          16:17, 17:2, 17:7, 17:10, 17:14,
butcher [2] - 20:8, 21:3
                                          17:19, 18:3, 18:6, 18:10, 18:17,
BUWAD [2] - 4:6, 74:1
                                          19:3, 19:6, 19:9, 19:14, 19:17,
buwad [1] - 74:4
                                          20:1, 20:7, 20:13, 20:17, 21:2,
BZA [1] - 27:15
                                          21:6, 21:9, 21:14, 21:17, 22:2,
                                          22:5, 22:8, 22:11, 22:17, 23:2,
                                          23:6, 23:9, 23:17, 24:1, 24:7,
C-R-A-N-E [1] - 25:19
                                          24:15, 25:1, 25:5, 26:5, 26:16,
Cab [1] - 22:19
                                          28:3, 29:3, 30:3, 30:7, 30:9,
Cafe [2] - 7:2, 66:19
                                          30:15, 31:2, 31:6, 31:9, 31:12,
CAFE [4] - 2:5, 3:9, 6:19, 66:16
                                          31:15, 31:19, 32:13, 33:4, 33:8,
calculating [1] - 30:5
                                          33:15, 33:17, 34:4, 34:13, 34:17,
CAMBRIDGE [2] - 1:1, 1:2
                                          35:2, 35:5, 35:8, 36:2, 36:12,
Cambridge [14] - 1:12, 5:7, 6:2,
                                          37:16, 39:10, 40:12, 41:6, 44:16,
15:17, 20:19, 26:2, 32:6, 34:10,
                                          45:2, 45:7, 45:19, 46:17, 47:1,
43:19, 46:13, 53:6, 71:18, 75:12,
                                          47:4, 47:17, 48:3, 48:7, 49:6,
75:17
                                          49:15, 50:1, 50:11, 51:13, 51:17,
campus [1] - 15:17
                                          52:8, 52:12, 52:15, 52:19, 53:10,
cancellation [1] - 14:4
                                          53:13, 53:17, 54:2, 54:7, 54:10,
cancelled [2] - 39:12, 43:5
                                          54:13, 54:18, 55:2, 55:6, 55:8,
capacity [2] - 14:16, 25:8
                                          55:10, 55:13, 55:17, 56:3, 56:10,
                                          56:14, 56:19, 57:5, 57:8, 57:11,
<u>CAPTURING</u> [1] - 1:16
                                          57:18, 58:8, 58:12, 58:19, 59:8,
car [3] - 21:12, 21:18, 22:7
                                          60:1, 60:11, 60:19, 61:3, 62:5,
CAR [2] - 2:13, 51:16
                                          62:9, 63:2, 63:9, 63:16, 64:1,
<u>Car</u> [2] - 51:18, 52:7
                                          64:7, 64:19, 65:16, 66:6, 66:18,
care [1] - 40:9
                                          67:16, 68:1, 68:13, 69:3, 69:8,
Carmelia [2] - 1:11, 5:8
                                         70:3, 70:15, 71:17, 72:11, 73:4,
<u>Carnival</u> [1] - 71:18
                                         74:2, 74:12, 75:4, 75:8, 76:2,
CAROLINE [1] - 3:12
                                         76:9, 76:16
<u>Carr</u> [1] - 68:2
                                         <u>Chair</u> [5] - 7:10, 12:8, 16:13, 26:6,
CARR [2] - 3:11, 67:18
                                         61:13
<u>Carson</u> [1] - 9:11
                                         chance [2] - 22:9, 58:17
Catholic [2] - 75:10, 76:4
                                         change [14] - 7:5, 7:6, 7:17, 8:5,
CD [1] - 32:18
                                          9:14, 16:15, 20:2, 20:3, 30:10,
<u>Central</u> [1] - 72:2
                                         46:11, 47:7, 48:14, 48:15, 77:2
certain [1] - 38:15
                                         CHANGE [6] - 77:4, 77:5, 77:6, 77:7,
CERTIFICATION [2] - 78:1, 78:16
                                         77:8, 77:9
certified [2] - 10:13
                                         <u>changes</u> [1] - 77:11
Certified [1] - 78:14
                                         <u>Chapter</u> [1] - 12:4
certify [1] - 78:7
                                         charge [1] - 9:1
CERTIFYING [1] - 78:18
                                         CHARLES [36] - 33:3, 33:6, 33:12,
CHAIR [172] - 1:6, 5:4, 5:14, 5:19,
                                          33:16, 34:2, 34:6, 34:16, 34:19,
6:16, 7:1, 9:13, 9:17, 10:2, 10:8,
                                          35:3, 35:7, 35:9, 36:3, 36:18,
10:12, 10:15, 10:19, 11:3, 11:6,
                                          37:2, 37:7, 37:11, 38:6, 38:10,
 11:12, 11:18, 12:11, 12:14, 12:17,
                                          38:14, 38:19, 40:6, 41:1, 41:17,
```

```
42:13, 43:1, 45:1, 45:4, 47:18,
                                           57:15, 60:17, 62:2, 62:7, 62:18,
 48:5, 49:4, 49:13, 49:17, 50:9,
                                           63:14, 63:18, 64:3, 64:14, 65:11,
 51:8, 51:11, 51:14
                                           67:14, 68:9, 69:4, 69:15, 70:11,
                                           71:11, 72:17, 73:17, 74:8, 76:7,
Charles [1] - 33:6
                                           76:14
<u>Charlie</u> [2] - 38:8, 46:6
<u>checks</u> [1] - 71:8
                                          Commissioner [2] - 5:9, 37:17
                                          <u>Commissioners</u> [3] - 5:9, 26:7, 61:6
CHIEF [38] - 1:8, 6:14, 10:16, 11:8,
                                          Committee [2] - 27:17, 28:12
14:5, 19:11, 20:12, 24:5, 30:8,
31:8, 36:13, 38:7, 38:12, 38:17,
                                          common [5] - 7:3, 12:1, 14:14, 25:7,
 39:6, 40:10, 42:9, 42:18, 47:13,
                                           67:1
 51:3, 51:10, 54:6, 54:17, 57:13,
                                          Commonwealth [3] - 10:4, 78:3, 78:6
 58:4, 60:10, 60:15, 61:19, 62:16,
                                          Communications [1] - 75:9
 65:9, 66:2, 67:12, 69:1, 69:17,
                                          companies [1] - 8:4
 71:13, 72:19, 75:19, 76:12
                                          COMPANY [1] - 2:13
Chief [1] - 5:15
                                          <u>Company</u> [1] - 23:1
Chilton [1] - 70:19
                                          company [8] - 9:2, 9:4, 9:9, 15:15,
<u>CHRISTINE</u> [1] - 66:15
                                           22:18, 26:14, 56:8, 68:3
Christine [2] - 66:18, 67:1
                                          complain [1] - 71:9
Circle [1] - 67:4
                                          compliant [1] - 25:14
<u>citizen</u> [1] - 32:7
                                          computerized [1] - 32:19
City [9] - 43:19, 51:2, 61:8, 61:15,
                                          concept [2] - 29:4, 29:18
62:4, 62:6, 62:14, 75:16
                                          concur [26] - 14:8, 20:11, 31:18,
city [9] - 24:17, 43:3, 43:15, 67:8,
                                           47:14, 47:16, 54:16, 57:16, 60:18,
67:9, 71:4, 72:8, 76:6
                                           62:1, 62:17, 64:15, 65:12, 67:15,
<u>CITY</u> [1] - 1:2
                                           68:10, 69:2, 69:5, 69:16, 69:18,
<u>cleaner</u> [1] - 29:18
                                           70:12, 71:12, 71:14, 72:18, 73:1,
<u>cleanest</u> [1] - 23:10
                                           73:18, 74:9, 76:8
<u>clear</u> [1] - 48:6
                                          <u>Conference</u> [2] - 1:11, 5:8
<u>client</u> [4] - 26:7, 26:11, 28:8,
                                          confines [1] - 48:19
28:13
                                          confirmation [1] - 39:9
<u>close</u> [2] - 12:12, 12:18
                                          confused [1] - 26:18
closed [3] - 12:13, 13:1, 38:16
                                          confusion [1] - 36:7
closing [2] - 20:9, 60:7
                                          <u>conjunction</u> [1] - 27:16
<u>club</u> [1] - 32:15
                                          consenting [1] - 28:8
COLLEGE [2] - 2:14, 59:19
                                          considered [1] - 13:19
<u>College</u> [1] - 60:2
                                          considering [1] - 28:14
<u>commander</u> [1] - 42:15
                                          <u>consistent</u> [1] - 74:19
<u>Commission</u> [4] - 5:5, 61:12, 61:13,
                                          contact [1] - 52:16
61:14
                                          continue [1] - 15:14
COMMISSION [3] - 1:1, 1:3, 1:5
                                          contract [1] - 56:15
commissioner [1] - 32:2
                                          CONTROL [1] - 78:17
COMMISSIONER [44] - 1:7, 5:12, 6:12,
                                          control [1] - 36:9
10:17, 11:10, 14:7, 19:12, 20:5,
                                          controls [1] - 36:9
 20:10, 23:18, 24:3, 31:17, 32:4,
                                          conversation [1] - 33:1
 32:8, 36:14, 36:19, 37:3, 37:8,
                                          cooking [2] - 29:9, 29:12
 37:14, 47:15, 54:4, 54:15, 57:3,
```

```
25:10, 44:3
copy [3] - 28:1, 28:6
                                           DCR [24] - 34:15, 35:12, 35:14,
corner [2] - 75:12, 76:2
                                            35:15, 35:17, 39:13, 39:16, 40:8,
<u>corporate</u> [1] - 64:9
correct [6] - 9:15, 18:5, 19:8,
                                            40:19, 41:6, 41:12, 42:10, 43:2,
                                            43:9, 44:8, 44:13, 44:17, 45:8,
23:4, 34:16, 36:18
                                           46:12, 47:11, 48:11, 49:3, 49:6,
correction [1] - 77:2
                                            49:18
corrections [1] - 77:11
                                           deal [1] - 42:10
counsel [3] - 62:3, 62:8, 62:19
                                           dealing [1] - 37:18
counter [3] - 15:11, 16:3, 30:14
                                           <u>decibel</u> [1] - 36:10
counter-service [2] - 15:11, 16:3
                                           deliver [1] - 29:14
couple [2] - 16:7, 27:1
                                           deliveries [2] - 28:16, 29:13
course [2] - 35:8, 40:14
                                           demolition [1] - 56:18
Courtney [3] - 61:5, 61:10, 62:11
                                           <u>denied</u> [1] - 67:16
COURTNEY [2] - 2:16, 61:2
                                           deny [3] - 67:6, 67:11, 67:13
crafted [1] - 30:16
                                           dePagter [3] - 63:10, 63:17, 65:17
CRANE [9] - 25:18, 26:6, 26:19,
                                           DEPAGTER [4] - 3:4, 3:7, 63:7, 65:14
 28:5, 30:6, 31:1, 31:5, 32:2, 32:6
                                           <u>Department</u> [1] - 35:14
<u>crane</u> [1] - 30:4
                                           <u>departure</u> [2] - 9:2, 9:3
<u>Crane</u> [1] - 25:19
                                           described [3] - 15:1, 25:12, 26:19
curricular [1] - 50:18
                                           <u>description</u> [2] - 30:10, 31:3
<u>customer</u> [1] - 15:2
                                           <u>detail</u> [4] - 35:11, 66:13, 70:10,
cut [1] - 36:5
                                           75:15
Cynthia [1] - 69:8
                                           <u>details</u> [1] - 35:13
CYNTHIA [2] - 3:13, 69:7
                                           determined [1] - 34:8
                                           Development [1] - 16:1
                                           <u>different</u> [3] - 13:10, 16:16, 53:8
<u>d/b/a</u> [8] - 12:1, 14:14, 16:8, 16:9,
                                           DIRECT [1] - 78:17
20:2, 25:6, 59:10, 66:19
                                           DIRECTION [1] - 78:18
D/B/A [11] - 2:7, 2:10, 3:6, 4:5,
11:17, 14:12, 25:4, 59:7, 64:18,
                                           DISCUSSION [2] - 2:15, 61:2
66:17, 73:3
                                           DJ [3] - 32:17, 33:19, 34:15
DALE [2] - 4:3, 72:10
                                           <u>Dock</u> [1] - 74:5
Dale [1] - 72:11
                                           DOES [1] - 78:17
dancing [9] - 32:17, 33:19, 34:14,
                                           <u>donate</u> [2] - 27:9, 29:7
65:3, 66:11, 68:15, 70:7, 72:5,
                                           <u>done</u> [3] - 29:11, 50:12, 50:15
74:14
                                           Donovan [1] - 44:7
DATE [1] - 1:13
                                           door [1] - 19:4
date [4] - 10:9, 71:2, 72:3, 77:3
                                           <u>down</u> [2] - 43:2, 45:5
dated [1] - 61:4
                                           <u>drive</u> [3] - 21:16, 22:6, 22:7
<u>David</u> [4] - 7:13, 7:18, 9:11, 58:18
                                           <u>driven</u> [1] - 23:7
DAVID [8] - 7:14, 7:15, 9:16, 10:1,
                                           driver [2] - 21:10, 21:11
10:7, 10:11, 10:14, 58:14
                                           driver's [2] - 20:19, 23:3
DAY [1] - 3:3
                                           <u>drove</u> [1] - 23:12
<u>day-to-day</u> [1] - 15:15
                                           Dudley [1] - 66:9
<u>days</u> [5] - 14:18, 17:19, 18:2,
                                           during [1] - 6:3
```

```
<u>dynamic</u> [1] - 70:8
E-D-W-A-R-D-S [1] - 7:14
East [1] - 7:4
Education [2] - 67:2, 67:4
Edwards [5] - 7:13, 7:19, 8:6, 9:12,
9:17
EDWARDS [6] - 7:15, 9:16, 10:1,
10:7, 10:11, 10:14
either [1] - 39:16
email [5] - 17:8, 53:15, 53:18,
61:11, 62:11
employees [1] - 18:16
end [2] - 13:5, 73:7
ended [1] - 13:5
engineer [1] - 36:8
English [1] - 23:15
ENT00185 [1] - 60:3
ENTERPRISE [2] - 2:13, 51:16
Enterprise [2] - 51:18, 52:6
entertainers [1] - 72:5
entertaining [1] - 13:9
entertainment [33] - 32:16, 33:9,
 33:11, 33:13, 36:16, 38:3, 40:2,
 41:14, 45:14, 46:8, 47:12, 47:19,
 48:8, 48:12, 48:15, 48:17, 48:19,
 49:9, 49:11, 65:3, 66:8, 68:3,
 68:8, 68:14, 69:9, 70:5, 70:16,
70:18, 71:6, 72:1, 73:11, 73:12,
74:13
entire [1] - 61:12
entirely [1] - 12:19
entity [2] - 26:11, 27:8
entrances [1] - 25:15
ERRATA [1] - 77:1
errata [1] - 77:3
<u>error</u> [1] - 16:10
essentially [1] - 9:4
establishment [1] - 59:13
Estate [1] - 64:10
event [4] - 39:12, 43:6, 59:13, 64:9
Events [3] - 65:7, 67:7, 72:8
events [7] - 40:7, 41:10, 41:11,
 41:16, 49:2, 50:3, 51:1
```

```
exactly [1] - 18:15
example [1] - 39:11
except [2] - 49:8, 77:11
excited [1] - 26:17
exercised [11] - 63:11, 64:10,
65:18, 66:8, 67:4, 68:4, 69:10,
70:5, 70:19, 72:2, 72:13
existed [1] - 9:8
existing [1] - 60:4
exits [1] - 25:15
expect [1] - 10:9
expected [11] - 63:13, 64:12, 66:1,
66:12, 67:5, 68:6, 69:12, 70:9,
71:3, 72:6, 72:15
<u>expense</u> [1] - 43:3
explain [1] - 28:19
explained [1] - 42:7
extend [3] - 41:14, 45:12, 49:11
extended [2] - 42:7, 49:17
```

F-E-E-N-E-Y [1] - 15:8 **facilities** [1] - 25:14 **fact** [1] - 37:9 fair [1] - 30:16 familiar [2] - 8:14, 10:3 **family** [2] - 67:3, 68:4 far [5] - 28:14, 28:15, 29:18, 37:15, 46:7 **fast** [1] - 52:8 **fastfood** [1] - 27:15 favor [8] - 11:1, 19:15, 31:10, 45:16, 46:4, 46:15, 54:8, 57:6 **FEENEY** [13] - 15:7, 16:19, 17:4, 17:9, 17:13, 17:16, 18:2, 18:5, 18:8, 18:14, 18:19, 19:5, 19:8 **feet** [2] - 15:1, 25:13 **Fellows** [1] - 60:2 **FELLOWS** [2] - 2:14, 59:19 fenced [3] - 37:13, 45:4, 45:6 FERRER [172] - 1:6, 5:4, 5:14, 5:19, 6:16, 7:1, 9:13, 9:17, 10:2, 10:8, 10:12, 10:15, 10:19, 11:3, 11:6, 11:12, 11:18, 12:11, 12:14, 12:17, 13:11, 13:16, 14:3, 14:9, 14:13, 16:17, 17:2, 17:7, 17:10, 17:14,

```
17:19, 18:3, 18:6, 18:10, 18:17,
                                        Fire [1] - 5:14
 19:3, 19:6, 19:9, 19:14, 19:17,
                                        first [9] - 6:8, 17:5, 17:8, 18:9,
 20:1, 20:7, 20:13, 20:17, 21:2,
                                         21:13, 22:15, 26:12, 30:17, 58:15
 21:6, 21:9, 21:14, 21:17, 22:2,
                                        fits [1] - 28:15
 22:5, 22:8, 22:11, 22:17, 23:2,
                                        five [6] - 35:19, 39:5, 39:18,
 23:6, 23:9, 23:17, 24:1, 24:7,
                                         41:10, 41:16, 43:11
 24:15, 25:1, 25:5, 26:5, 26:16,
                                        fix [1] - 43:3
 28:3, 29:3, 30:3, 30:7, 30:9,
                                        floor [4] - 15:2, 18:12, 30:17,
 30:15, 31:2, 31:6, 31:9, 31:12,
                                         30:18
31:15, 31:19, 32:13, 33:4, 33:8,
                                        folder [1] - 34:3
 33:15, 33:17, 34:4, 34:13, 34:17,
                                        folks [1] - 51:4
 35:2, 35:5, 35:8, 36:2, 36:12,
                                        Fong [1] - 15:14
 37:16, 39:10, 40:12, 41:6, 44:16,
                                        food [11] - 15:2, 15:12, 15:17,
 45:2, 45:7, 45:19, 46:17, 47:1,
                                         25:13, 26:15, 27:4, 27:11, 28:15,
 47:4, 47:17, 48:3, 48:7, 49:6,
                                         59:11, 73:7, 73:12
 49:15, 50:1, 50:11, 51:13, 51:17,
                                        FOODS [2] - 2:6, 14:11
 52:8, 52:12, 52:15, 52:19, 53:10,
                                        Foods [2] - 14:14, 15:10
 53:13, 53:17, 54:2, 54:7, 54:10,
                                        for.. [1] - 51:7
 54:13, 54:18, 55:2, 55:6, 55:8,
                                        foregoing [1] - 77:11
 55:10, 55:13, 55:17, 56:3, 56:10,
                                        FOREGOING [1] - 78:16
 56:14, 56:19, 57:5, 57:8, 57:11,
 57:18, 58:8, 58:12, 58:19, 59:8,
                                        forever [1] - 39:4
 60:1, 60:11, 60:19, 61:3, 62:5,
                                        forth [2] - 19:2, 78:8
62:9, 63:2, 63:9, 63:16, 64:1,
                                        forward [4] - 61:15, 62:4, 62:14,
 64:7, 64:19, 65:16, 66:6, 66:18,
                                        63:3
67:16, 68:1, 68:13, 69:3, 69:8,
                                        forwarded [2] - 61:7, 62:6
70:3, 70:15, 71:17, 72:11, 73:4,
                                        founded [1] - 15:10
74:2, 74:12, 75:4, 75:8, 76:2,
                                        founders [1] - 15:13
76:9, 76:16
                                        four [3] - 39:5, 48:9, 73:5
festival [1] - 72:1
                                        frankly [1] - 40:1
Festival [2] - 75:11, 76:5
                                        FREDERICK [2] - 4:8, 75:7
few [3] - 9:4, 13:8, 44:4
                                        Frederick [1] - 75:8
field [1] - 45:6
                                        Friday [2] - 42:1, 51:7
file [2] - 40:17, 40:18
                                        friend [2] - 22:14, 22:15
filed [1] - 6:6
                                        friend's [2] - 22:12, 22:14
FILM [1] - 2:14
                                        <u>friends</u> [2] - 22:1, 22:3
Film [1] - 60:2
                                        FROM [2] - 2:15, 61:2
film [1] - 60:8
                                        front [1] - 28:11
fine [2] - 38:4, 45:11
                                        full [1] - 8:7
FIRE [38] - 1:8, 6:14, 10:16, 11:8,
                                        full-time [1] - 8:7
14:5, 19:11, 20:12, 24:5, 30:8,
                                        <u>fun</u> [1] - 5:13
31:8, 36:13, 38:7, 38:12, 38:17,
                                        fundraiser [1] - 69:10
39:6, 40:10, 42:9, 42:18, 47:13,
51:3, 51:10, 54:6, 54:17, 57:13,
58:4, 60:10, 60:15, 61:19, 62:16,
                                        garden [1] - 65:6
65:9, 66:2, 67:12, 69:1, 69:17,
                                        Garden [1] - 72:14
71:13, 72:19, 75:19, 76:12
```

```
GAZDA [7] - 12:7, 12:9, 12:13,
                                         hand [2] - 16:12, 78:11
12:16, 12:19, 13:12, 14:1
                                         hang [1] - 58:3
<u>Gazda</u> [1] - 12:8
                                         HARVARD [3] - 2:14, 59:19, 66:5
General [1] - 12:3
                                         Harvard [5] - 15:18, 27:17, 60:2,
Genzyme [1] - 59:11
                                         66:9, 74:6
GERARD [38] - 1:8, 6:14, 10:16,
                                         hauler [2] - 24:17, 55:16
11:8, 14:5, 19:11, 20:12, 24:5,
                                         hearing [6] - 5:5, 6:6, 11:19, 16:8,
 30:8, 31:8, 36:13, 38:7, 38:12,
                                         47:10, 78:8
 38:17, 39:6, 40:10, 42:9, 42:18,
                                         HEARING [2] - 1:1, 1:3
 47:13, 51:3, 51:10, 54:6, 54:17,
                                         hello [1] - 58:18
 57:13, 58:4, 60:10, 60:15, 61:19,
                                         help [1] - 58:9
 62:16, 65:9, 66:2, 67:12, 69:1,
                                         hereby [2] - 77:12, 78:6
 69:17, 71:13, 72:19, 75:19, 76:12
                                         herein [1] - 78:8
<u>Gerard</u> [1] - 5:15
                                         hereunto [1] - 78:10
Gerry's [1] - 32:15
                                         hesitant [1] - 39:14
given [1] - 13:7
                                         hired [1] - 8:17
Glass [2] - 59:10, 73:6
                                         holder [5] - 7:3, 12:1, 32:14, 60:3,
GLASS [3] - 4:5, 59:7, 73:3
                                          67:1
gonna [2] - 27:2, 32:3
                                         holdings [1] - 27:5
goods [1] - 29:15
                                         honestly [1] - 43:17
grant [17] - 11:7, 13:17, 20:2,
                                         hoping [1] - 46:10
 24:2, 24:4, 31:16, 46:10, 47:5,
                                         Hospitality [1] - 59:9
 54:14, 57:12, 60:14, 65:8, 68:7,
                                         HOSPITALITY [3] - 4:4, 59:6, 73:2
72:7, 72:16, 73:14, 75:16
                                         hour [3] - 20:9, 60:7, 74:19
granted [23] - 11:9, 11:11, 11:12,
                                         hours [9] - 8:8, 14:18, 17:17, 20:4,
 20:13, 24:8, 31:19, 41:4, 50:14,
                                          25:9, 28:9, 71:9, 74:19, 75:1
 57:14, 60:16, 60:19, 63:13, 64:13,
                                         HOUSE [3] - 4:5, 59:7, 73:3
 65:10, 66:1, 66:13, 69:3, 69:13,
                                         House [3] - 59:10, 66:9, 73:6
70:10, 74:7, 74:17, 75:5, 76:6
                                         housekeeping [1] - 9:4
grease [1] - 29:9
                                         Huron [1] - 71:1
grease-laden [1] - 29:9
great [1] - 43:2
grilling [1] - 29:10
                                         <u>idea</u> [1] - 13:9
ground [1] - 15:1
                                         <u>important</u> [1] - 27:13
Group [1] - 75:9
                                         <u>IN</u> [3] - 1:3, 78:10, 78:17
guess [1] - 27:3
                                         Inc [6] - 6:1, 24:16, 32:14, 66:19,
guessing [1] - 17:4
                                         68:2, 71:19
GUEVARA [2] - 3:13, 69:7
                                         INC [13] - 1:16, 2:3, 2:9, 2:12,
Guevara [1] - 69:9
                                          3:6, 3:9, 5:18, 24:14, 32:12, 56:2,
guy [1] - 22:16
                                          64:18, 66:16, 67:19
guys [6] - 18:6, 52:12, 55:13,
                                         <u>inception</u> [1] - 9:8
56:11, 57:2, 58:12
                                         include [4] - 18:16, 32:16, 48:14,
                                          48:15
                                         <u>including</u> [3] - 39:13, 40:2, 61:17
Hackney [2] - 20:19, 24:10
                                         <u>INDEX</u> [3] - 2:1, 3:1, 4:1
<u>Hall</u> [2] - 52:14, 66:9
```

```
industry [1] - 8:3
                                         <u>June</u> [2] - 8:10, 43:12
<u>information</u> [1] - 17:11
INFORMATIONAL [1] - 11:16
informational [1] - 11:19
                                         KAITLYN [2] - 4:7, 74:11
                                         <u>Kaitlyn</u> [1] - 74:12
inside [13] - 14:16, 18:11, 25:8,
                                         Kale [1] - 60:12
33:10, 37:18, 40:2, 40:5, 40:7,
                                         keep [3] - 13:3, 17:14, 40:6
40:13, 44:12, 47:6, 48:9, 49:1
                                         Kehoe [1] - 70:17
<u>inspired</u> [1] - 15:11
<u>INSTRUCTIONS</u> [1] - 77:2
                                         KEHOE [2] - 3:15, 70:14
                                         Kendall [6] - 7:4, 59:9, 68:4, 72:2,
interest [2] - 7:5, 9:5
interesting [1] - 30:2
                                          72:13, 73:6
                                         KENDALL [3] - 4:4, 59:6, 73:2
interim [2] - 8:12, 48:1
                                         KEVIN [10] - 25:18, 25:19, 26:6,
INTERIM [44] - 1:7, 5:12, 6:12,
                                          26:19, 28:5, 30:6, 31:1, 31:5,
10:17, 11:10, 14:7, 19:12, 20:5,
                                          32:2, 32:6
20:10, 23:18, 24:3, 31:17, 32:4,
32:8, 36:14, 36:19, 37:3, 37:8,
                                         Kevin [2] - 25:19, 29:5
37:14, 47:15, 54:4, 54:15, 57:3,
                                         KIMBERLY [2] - 2:15, 61:2
57:15, 60:17, 62:2, 62:7, 62:18,
                                         Kimberly [2] - 61:4, 62:11
63:14, 63:18, 64:3, 64:14, 65:11,
                                         kind [1] - 44:11
 67:14, 68:9, 69:4, 69:15, 70:11,
                                         kitchen [3] - 25:13, 30:18
71:11, 72:17, 73:17, 74:8, 76:7,
                                         <u>knows</u> [1] - 41:3
76:14
                                         <u>Kourafas</u> [2] - 78:5, 78:13
International [1] - 71:19
                                         KRISTEN [4] - 7:9, 7:11, 7:16, 11:14
interrupt [1] - 58:16
                                         Kristen [1] - 7:11
<u>Ireland</u> [1] - 27:7
                                         KRISTIN [2] - 3:10, 68:12
issue [13] - 37:18, 39:8, 39:9,
                                         Kristin [1] - 68:13
39:11, 40:2, 40:13, 42:17, 44:12,
45:11, 52:17, 60:13, 67:11, 71:7
<u>issued</u> [4] - 23:3, 27:17, 67:10,
                                         L-I-N-E-H-A-N [1] - 33:6
73:15
                                         <u>Lab</u> [1] - 15:19
<u>issues</u> [3] - 29:1, 42:11, 42:16
                                         laden [1] - 29:9
<u>Italian</u> [2] - 75:10, 76:4
                                         Landing [1] - 32:15
Italian-American [2] - 75:10, 76:4
                                         landlord [4] - 13:3, 28:8, 38:2,
<u>item</u> [1] - 62:13
                                          38:5
itself [1] - 34:12
                                         LANDSCAPING [2] - 2:3, 5:18
IZOTOPE [1] - 67:19
                                         Landscaping [1] - 6:1
Izotope [1] - 68:2
                                         Lane [1] - 71:1
                                         <u>Larrabee</u> [2] - 5:9, 32:2
                                         LARRABEE [44] - 1:7, 5:13, 6:13,
JACKIE [2] - 3:15, 70:14
                                          10:18, 11:11, 14:8, 19:13, 20:6,
Jackie [1] - 70:17
                                          20:11, 23:19, 24:4, 31:18, 32:5,
JFK [1] - 12:2
                                          32:9, 36:15, 37:1, 37:4, 37:9,
Jill [2] - 78:5, 78:13
                                          37:15, 47:16, 54:5, 54:16, 57:4,
Jim [1] - 44:6
                                          57:16, 60:18, 62:3, 62:8, 62:19,
July [7] - 6:4, 12:13, 27:16, 43:12,
                                          63:15, 63:19, 64:4, 64:15, 65:12,
76:10
                                          67:15, 68:10, 69:5, 69:16, 70:12,
```

```
71:12, 72:18, 73:18, 74:9, 76:8,
                                          licensing [4] - 17:11, 46:13, 46:14,
 76:15
                                           52:16
<u>last</u> [11] - 5:10, 8:18, 15:8, 17:5,
                                          <u>Lieutenant</u> [1] - 44:6
21:5, 32:3, 33:5, 39:4, 50:13,
                                          <u>life</u> [1] - 23:11
56:7, 62:13
                                          LINE [1] - 77:4
<u>laws</u> [2] - 10:4, 10:10
                                          <u>line</u> [2] - 19:1, 27:2
<u>Laws</u> [1] - 12:4
                                          LINEHAN [36] - 33:3, 33:6, 33:12,
leaf [1] - 58:15
                                           33:16, 34:2, 34:6, 34:16, 34:19,
Leahy [2] - 5:19, 58:14
                                           35:3, 35:7, 35:9, 36:3, 36:18,
LEAHY [2] - 2:3, 5:18
                                           37:2, 37:7, 37:11, 38:6, 38:10,
<u>lease</u> [6] - 13:5, 28:7, 37:1, 38:9,
                                           38:14, 38:19, 40:6, 41:1, 41:17,
                                           42:13, 43:1, 45:1, 45:4, 47:18,
40:19, 45:8
                                           48:5, 49:4, 49:13, 49:17, 50:9,
least [1] - 50:3
                                           51:8, 51:11, 51:14
leaving [1] - 9:11
                                          Linehan [2] - 33:7, 33:9
<u>legal</u> [1] - 16:11
                                          LINGO [1] - 66:17
Legion [1] - 32:14
                                          Lingo [1] - 66:19
LEGION [2] - 2:12, 32:12
                                          <u>liquor</u> [1] - 9:19
Lehman [1] - 66:9
                                          listed [2] - 16:8, 55:4
Lesley [1] - 52:13
                                           listening [1] - 40:16
letter [11] - 6:10, 16:12, 27:17,
                                          literally [1] - 23:10
 28:1, 34:7, 44:14, 44:17, 45:9,
47:9, 47:10, 61:4
                                          live [21] - 32:17, 33:14, 33:19,
                                           34:18, 35:9, 35:10, 35:19, 43:6,
LETTER [2] - 2:15, 61:2
                                           47:11, 47:19, 65:4, 66:11, 68:6,
letting [1] - 51:19
                                           68:15, 69:12, 70:7, 70:9, 70:16,
level [2] - 33:1, 45:6
                                           71:3, 72:5, 74:14
Lexington [1] - 53:6
                                          LLC [23] - 2:5, 2:6, 2:10, 2:13,
<u>liaison</u> [1] - 42:11
                                           4:4, 6:19, 7:2, 9:6, 9:10, 9:12,
LICENSE [3] - 1:1, 1:3, 1:5
                                           11:16, 12:1, 12:10, 14:11, 14:14,
<u>license</u> [55] - 7:3, 8:13, 9:19,
                                           15:10, 25:3, 25:6, 51:16, 51:18,
12:2, 12:3, 13:3, 13:7, 14:15,
                                           59:6, 59:10, 73:2
 20:19, 22:15, 23:3, 24:10, 24:17,
                                          Loading [1] - 74:5
 25:7, 30:10, 32:15, 32:16, 33:9,
                                           location [6] - 13:4, 13:10, 15:19,
 33:13, 36:4, 36:15, 37:5, 39:7,
                                           26:8, 27:11, 76:1
 41:14, 45:11, 45:15, 48:15, 49:10,
                                          <u>locations</u> [1] - 16:4
 49:12, 49:18, 51:19, 59:11, 60:3,
                                          Lombardi [1] - 1:11
 60:4, 61:9, 63:11, 64:8, 65:2,
                                          looking [3] - 26:7, 40:16, 40:17
 65:18, 66:8, 67:2, 67:3, 67:7,
                                          LUNCH [3] - 3:6, 3:6, 64:18
 68:3, 68:8, 68:14, 69:9, 70:5,
                                          Lynch [1] - 15:13
70:16, 70:18, 71:7, 72:1, 72:12,
74:13, 75:11
License [2] - 5:5, 78:14
                                          \underline{\mathbf{M-A-R-C-I-N-K-E-V-I-C-H}} \quad [2] \quad - \quad 52:5,
<u>licensed</u> [2] - 37:11, 61:10
<u>licensee</u> [2] - 7:12, 50:16
                                           52:11
                                          M-E-L-I-S-S-A [1] - 56:7
<u>licensees</u> [1] - 50:17
                                          M-I-C-H-A-E-L [1] - 15:8
<u>licenses</u> [2] - 63:5, 64:2
                                          MA [1] - 52:9
```

LICENSES [1] - 3:3

```
ma'am [1] - 59:1
                                         medallion [2] - 22:3, 22:9
machine [1] - 32:18
                                         media [1] - 32:19
Madam [3] - 7:10, 12:7, 26:6
                                         meet [5] - 24:9, 50:5, 50:6, 50:7,
Mahoney [1] - 5:15
                                         58:17
MAHONEY [38] - 1:8, 6:14, 10:16,
                                         meeting [4] - 5:10, 58:16, 58:18,
                                         76:18
11:8, 14:5, 19:11, 20:12, 24:5,
 30:8, 31:8, 36:13, 38:7, 38:12,
                                         meetings [1] - 50:4
 38:17, 39:6, 40:10, 42:9, 42:18,
                                         <u>Meister</u> [1] - 70:4
 47:13, 51:3, 51:10, 54:6, 54:17,
                                         MEISTER [3] - 3:14, 70:1, 75:3
 57:13, 58:4, 60:10, 60:15, 61:19,
                                         Mekonnen [2] - 20:18, 21:7
 62:16, 65:9, 66:2, 67:12, 69:1,
                                         MEKONNEN [17] - 2:8, 20:16, 21:1,
69:17, 71:13, 72:19, 75:19, 76:12
                                         21:4, 21:8, 21:12, 21:16, 21:19,
Mailka [1] - 70:4
                                         22:4, 22:7, 22:10, 22:13, 22:19,
MAILKA [1] - 3:14
                                         23:5, 23:8, 23:16, 24:11
Main [2] - 63:12, 65:19
                                         MELISSA [7] - 55:15, 56:6, 56:13,
<u>majority</u> [1] - 8:1
                                         56:17, 58:2, 58:6, 58:10
malt [9] - 12:2, 63:10, 64:8, 65:2,
                                         <u>member</u> [1] - 46:5
65:17, 66:7, 67:3, 72:12, 75:11
                                         MEMBER [1] - 59:3
manager [20] - 7:6, 7:18, 8:5, 8:11,
                                         members [2] - 9:6, 9:8
 8:18, 9:10, 9:12, 9:18, 14:19,
                                         MEMBERS [1] - 1:5
15:9, 16:14, 20:3, 25:11, 28:19,
                                         Members [2] - 7:10, 12:8
 52:6, 53:1, 53:2, 53:4, 53:5, 53:8
                                         mention [1] - 73:15
<u>MARCINKEVICH</u> [9] - 52:4, 52:10,
                                         mentioned [1] - 61:18
 52:14, 52:18, 53:3, 53:12, 53:16,
                                         menu [3] - 16:3, 28:6, 29:19
 54:19, 55:7
                                         method [1] - 29:8
Marcinkevich [1] - 52:4
                                         Mexican [5] - 26:10, 26:15, 27:4,
market [1] - 28:17
                                          27:10, 29:6
Marsh [3] - 32:13, 38:18, 44:18
                                         MICHAEL [13] - 15:7, 16:19, 17:4,
MARSH [2] - 2:11, 32:11
                                         17:9, 17:13, 17:16, 18:2, 18:5,
<u>Mass</u> [4] - 5:7, 10:5, 12:3, 52:1
                                         18:8, 18:14, 18:19, 19:5, 19:8
Massachusetts [5] - 1:12, 1:12, 5:7,
                                         Michael [2] - 1:11, 15:8
78:3, 78:6
                                         MICKARCER [2] - 4:6, 74:1
matter [1] - 7:2
                                         <u>Mickarcer</u> [1] - 74:4
MATTERS [4] - 2:1, 3:2, 4:1, 59:5
                                         middle [1] - 21:7
matters [3] - 9:4, 55:11, 59:9
                                         midnight [1] - 28:10
Maul [3] - 7:18, 8:11, 9:11
                                         might [1] - 18:16
MAY [1] - 2:15
                                         mike@bonmetruck [1] - 17:12
MCCALL [1] - 58:14
                                         mind [1] - 13:12
McCall [1] - 58:18
                                         minimum [2] - 13:18
ME [2] - 2:6, 14:11
                                         minute [2] - 50:13, 58:7
meal [2] - 27:9, 29:7
                                         <u>minutes</u> [1] - 76:11
mean [8] - 37:7, 40:1, 40:13, 42:16,
                                         <u>Misner</u> [1] - 75:5
50:7, 51:6, 62:8, 73:12
                                         Mission [2] - 27:10, 29:6
meant [1] - 48:4
                                         MIT [8] - 63:8, 63:11, 65:15, 65:18,
meanwhile [1] - 44:2
                                         68:16, 70:2, 70:6, 73:9
meats [1] - 29:15
```

```
76:9, 76:16
moment [2] - 26:17, 59:17
                                        music [22] - 32:17, 32:19, 33:14,
monitors [1] - 36:10
                                         33:19, 34:14, 34:18, 35:9, 35:10,
month [2] - 13:17, 50:8
months [4] - 14:4, 27:1, 50:6
                                         35:19, 36:11, 43:6, 51:9, 65:4,
                                         66:11, 68:6, 68:15, 69:12, 70:7,
morning [1] - 28:10
                                         70:16, 71:3, 72:5, 74:15
most [2] - 8:7, 51:11
                                        <u>musical</u> [1] - 68:16
motor [1] - 51:19
                                        must [1] - 49:10
move [1] - 8:3
moved [2] - 59:15, 59:16
movies [1] - 60:5
                                        <u>nachos</u> [1] - 29:19
moving [3] - 55:11, 59:8, 63:5
                                        <u>name</u> [26] - 12:6, 15:6, 15:7, 15:8,
Mt [4] - 25:7, 26:1, 26:9, 27:12
                                         16:19, 17:5, 17:8, 20:3, 20:6,
Municipal [1] - 6:2
                                         20:8, 21:3, 21:5, 21:7, 22:12,
MURATI [172] - 1:6, 5:4, 5:14, 5:19,
                                         22:18, 25:18, 33:5, 46:2, 46:3,
 6:16, 7:1, 9:13, 9:17, 10:2, 10:8,
                                         52:3, 53:11, 53:14, 56:6, 56:7
10:12, 10:15, 10:19, 11:3, 11:6,
                                        names [3] - 7:8, 25:17, 56:4
11:12, 11:18, 12:11, 12:14, 12:17,
                                        NE [3] - 2:10, 25:3, 25:5
 13:11, 13:16, 14:3, 14:9, 14:13,
                                        need [7] - 17:2, 29:8, 44:14, 44:17,
 16:17, 17:2, 17:7, 17:10, 17:14,
                                         51:1, 51:5, 53:14
 17:19, 18:3, 18:6, 18:10, 18:17,
                                        needed [3] - 39:12, 55:16, 58:7
 19:3, 19:6, 19:9, 19:14, 19:17,
                                        <u>never</u> [4] - 9:18, 42:15, 46:7, 51:12
 20:1, 20:7, 20:13, 20:17, 21:2,
                                        New [1] - 27:6
 21:6, 21:9, 21:14, 21:17, 22:2,
                                        <u>new</u> [5] - 8:11, 8:18, 15:19, 18:8,
 22:5, 22:8, 22:11, 22:17, 23:2,
                                         20:18
 23:6, 23:9, 23:17, 24:1, 24:7,
                                        Nichols [1] - 34:11
 24:15, 25:1, 25:5, 26:5, 26:16,
                                        NICOLA [2] - 4:2, 71:16
 28:3, 29:3, 30:3, 30:7, 30:9,
 30:15, 31:2, 31:6, 31:9, 31:12,
                                        Nicola [1] - 71:17
 31:15, 31:19, 32:13, 33:4, 33:8,
                                        NICOLE [172] - 1:6, 5:4, 5:14, 5:19,
 33:15, 33:17, 34:4, 34:13, 34:17,
                                         6:16, 7:1, 9:13, 9:17, 10:2, 10:8,
 35:2, 35:5, 35:8, 36:2, 36:12,
                                         10:12, 10:15, 10:19, 11:3, 11:6,
 37:16, 39:10, 40:12, 41:6, 44:16,
                                         11:12, 11:18, 12:11, 12:14, 12:17,
 45:2, 45:7, 45:19, 46:17, 47:1,
                                         13:11, 13:16, 14:3, 14:9, 14:13,
 47:4, 47:17, 48:3, 48:7, 49:6,
                                         16:17, 17:2, 17:7, 17:10, 17:14,
 49:15, 50:1, 50:11, 51:13, 51:17,
                                         17:19, 18:3, 18:6, 18:10, 18:17,
 52:8, 52:12, 52:15, 52:19, 53:10,
                                         19:3, 19:6, 19:9, 19:14, 19:17,
 53:13, 53:17, 54:2, 54:7, 54:10,
                                         20:1, 20:7, 20:13, 20:17, 21:2,
 54:13, 54:18, 55:2, 55:6, 55:8,
                                         21:6, 21:9, 21:14, 21:17, 22:2,
 55:10, 55:13, 55:17, 56:3, 56:10,
                                         22:5, 22:8, 22:11, 22:17, 23:2,
 56:14, 56:19, 57:5, 57:8, 57:11,
                                         23:6, 23:9, 23:17, 24:1, 24:7,
 57:18, 58:8, 58:12, 58:19, 59:8,
                                         24:15, 25:1, 25:5, 26:5, 26:16,
 60:1, 60:11, 60:19, 61:3, 62:5,
                                         28:3, 29:3, 30:3, 30:7, 30:9,
 62:9, 63:2, 63:9, 63:16, 64:1,
                                         30:15, 31:2, 31:6, 31:9, 31:12,
 64:7, 64:19, 65:16, 66:6, 66:18,
                                         31:15, 31:19, 32:13, 33:4, 33:8,
 67:16, 68:1, 68:13, 69:3, 69:8,
                                         33:15, 33:17, 34:4, 34:13, 34:17,
 70:3, 70:15, 71:17, 72:11, 73:4,
                                         35:2, 35:5, 35:8, 36:2, 36:12,
 74:2, 74:12, 75:4, 75:8, 76:2,
                                         37:16, 39:10, 40:12, 41:6, 44:16,
```

```
45:2, 45:7, 45:19, 46:17, 47:1,
                                        occupancy [3] - 18:12, 25:9, 30:5
 47:4, 47:17, 48:3, 48:7, 49:6,
                                        OF [13] - 1:2, 2:1, 2:13, 2:14,
 49:15, 50:1, 50:11, 51:13, 51:17,
                                         2:15, 3:1, 4:1, 51:16, 59:19, 61:2,
 52:8, 52:12, 52:15, 52:19, 53:10,
                                         78:16, 78:17, 78:18
 53:13, 53:17, 54:2, 54:7, 54:10,
                                         offering [1] - 16:2
 54:13, 54:18, 55:2, 55:6, 55:8,
                                         Office [1] - 16:1
 55:10, 55:13, 55:17, 56:3, 56:10,
                                        officer [1] - 46:9
 56:14, 56:19, 57:5, 57:8, 57:11,
                                        <u>Officer</u> [1] - 24:8
 57:18, 58:8, 58:12, 58:19, 59:8,
                                         OFFICIAL [1] - 1:16
 60:1, 60:11, 60:19, 61:3, 62:5,
                                         offs [1] - 56:12
 62:9, 63:2, 63:9, 63:16, 64:1,
                                        Oktoberfest [2] - 73:10, 73:13
 64:7, 64:19, 65:16, 66:6, 66:18,
                                         once [1] - 28:14
 67:16, 68:1, 68:13, 69:3, 69:8,
                                        <u>One</u> [2] - 11:19, 12:10
 70:3, 70:15, 71:17, 72:11, 73:4,
                                        ONE [2] - 3:3, 11:16
 74:2, 74:12, 75:4, 75:8, 76:2,
                                        one [31] - 15:17, 22:1, 22:2, 27:9,
76:9, 76:16
                                         29:14, 30:17, 38:10, 39:2, 41:3,
night [3] - 29:13, 42:1, 51:7
                                         41:13, 42:7, 43:13, 49:4, 49:8,
NNBBA [1] - 74:4
                                         49:18, 55:4, 59:10, 60:4, 63:5,
<u>non</u> [1] - 12:3
                                         63:10, 63:15, 64:2, 64:8, 64:19,
non-use [1] - 12:3
                                         65:17, 66:7, 67:3, 68:3, 72:12,
none [2] - 54:5, 57:4
                                         73:5, 75:5
Norfolk [1] - 78:4
                                        one-day [14] - 41:13, 49:4, 49:18,
North [2] - 66:19, 68:4
                                         59:10, 60:4, 63:5, 63:10, 64:2,
NORTH [2] - 3:9, 66:16
                                         64:8, 65:17, 66:7, 67:3, 68:3,
NOT [1] - 78:17
                                         72:12
Notary [2] - 78:5, 78:15
                                         ONE-DAY [1] - 3:3
<u>note</u> [1] - 77:2
                                        one-stop [1] - 29:14
noted [1] - 77:11
                                         one-time [1] - 49:8
nothing [1] - 30:14
                                         ons [1] - 74:3
notice [3] - 34:1, 42:5, 51:5
                                        open [2] - 28:13, 40:7
noticed [1] - 6:9
                                        opened [1] - 8:1
notified [4] - 34:7, 34:9, 41:19,
                                        opening [1] - 18:3
44:3
                                         operate [2] - 15:16, 24:17
notify [1] - 44:13
                                         operating [2] - 6:3, 6:4
<u>number</u> [4] - 22:9, 53:15, 55:3, 60:3
                                        operation [5] - 9:14, 20:4, 28:9,
                                         28:15, 29:2
                   0
                                         operational [1] - 29:1
<u>02</u> [1] - 16:9
                                        operationally [1] - 29:18
object [1] - 44:15
                                         OPERATIONS [2] - 2:10, 25:3
objection [1] - 35:4
                                         operations [3] - 15:9, 15:15, 52:6
Obone [1] - 68:14
                                        Operations [1] - 25:6
OBONE [2] - 3:10, 68:12
                                        opposed [1] - 14:2
obtained [1] - 35:12
                                        opposition [7] - 11:4, 19:18, 31:13,
obviously [2] - 8:12, 29:17
                                         46:1, 47:2, 54:11, 57:9
occasion [2] - 33:16, 51:6
                                        <u>order</u> [1] - 27:15
occasionally [1] - 35:15
```

<u>ordinance</u> [1] - 23:15 pending [4] - 39:9, 75:16, 76:6 Ordinances [1] - 6:2 people [10] - 8:3, 18:13, 19:1, 27:1, 50:2, 50:13, 50:15, 50:18, originally [1] - 61:18 otherwise [1] - 40:1 59:12, 71:9 **per** [1] - 8:8 outdoor [5] - 15:3, 39:15, 45:10, perfect [1] - 58:10 45:12, 45:14 **performers** [3] - 68:15, 72:4, 74:14 outside [20] - 19:4, 33:11, 34:15, 36:1, 36:16, 37:19, 38:2, 39:7, period [3] - 6:3, 13:14, 42:3 39:17, 41:8, 41:10, 41:15, 43:6, permission [8] - 34:18, 39:19, 41:5, 47:8, 48:13, 48:16, 48:17, 49:9, 41:12, 45:10, 45:14, 49:8, 49:10 49:12, 49:18 **Permit** [1] - 27:15 overnight [1] - 60:8 **permit** [11] - 6:4, 43:16, 43:18, oversee [1] - 15:14 44:1, 49:5, 49:19, 55:16, 69:14, oversees [1] - 53:5 71:5, 74:16, 75:1 own [2] - 21:12, 36:17 permits [14] - 17:11, 35:12, 39:13, owner [3] - 8:1, 45:13, 56:8 42:4, 43:9, 50:14, 51:2, 67:8, 67:10, 67:11, 71:4, 72:8, 75:17, owners [1] - 15:13 76:6 ownership [2] - 9:5, 37:6 permitting [1] - 52:17 person [5] - 16:16, 52:16, 53:11, 53:14, 53:15 **P-I-N-T-O** [1] - 56:9 p.m [29] - 1:14, 5:2, 5:6, 14:18, personal [1] - 21:18 17:18, 20:9, 36:5, 59:12, 60:7, personally [1] - 61:7 petition [16] - 11:1, 11:4, 19:15, 60:8, 63:13, 64:12, 65:5, 65:19, 68:19, 69:12, 71:2, 71:5, 71:7, 19:18, 27:18, 31:10, 31:13, 45:17, 71:8, 71:10, 72:4, 72:15, 75:1 46:4, 46:11, 46:15, 47:2, 54:8, PADDY'S [3] - 3:6, 3:6, 64:18 54:11, 57:6, 57:9 <u>Paddy's</u> [1] - 65:1 petitioner [1] - 26:1 PAGE [4] - 2:1, 3:2, 4:1, 77:4 **PFG** [1] - 29:14 paper [1] - 29:15 philanthropic [1] - 27:8 **phone** [1] - 53:15 **parade** [1] - 72:1 Park [3] - 69:11, 69:13, 74:15 **PHONETIC** [2] - 74:1, 74:11 phonetic [2] - 60:12, 68:12 park [3] - 69:13, 74:16, 75:1 part [2] - 8:7, 16:10 **pick** [1] - 24:10 **PINTO** [3] - 2:9, 24:14, 56:2 particular [7] - 27:11, 27:12, 29:1, 55:14, 56:15, 58:13, 59:2 Pinto [5] - 24:15, 24:18, 55:15, particularly [1] - 27:13 55:19, 56:8 Piszczek [1] - 70:4 party [6] - 13:10, 66:8, 70:5, 70:19, 73:7, 73:11 **PISZCZEK** [1] - 3:14 past [1] - 27:1 **plan** [5] - 16:15, 18:12, 21:18, patio [7] - 14:17, 45:1, 45:2, 30:17, 61:12 47:12, 48:2, 48:13, 73:9 **planned** [1] - 51:9 Patrick [1] - 15:13 **planning** [2] - 21:15, 67:8 patrons [6] - 32:17, 65:3, 66:10, playing [1] - 32:19 70:7, 72:4, 74:14 **Plaza** [1] - 68:4 Pause [1] - 55:12

```
Point [1] - 66:19
                                         proposed [5] - 14:17, 14:19, 25:9,
POINT [2] - 3:9, 66:16
                                          25:11, 28:6
                                         provide [5] - 45:9, 47:11, 48:12,
pointed [1] - 61:11
POLICE [44] - 1:7, 5:12, 6:12,
                                         48:16, 48:19
                                         provided [1] - 6:8
10:17, 11:10, 14:7, 19:12, 20:5,
 20:10, 23:18, 24:3, 31:17, 32:4,
                                         providing [1] - 45:13
 32:8, 36:14, 36:19, 37:3, 37:8,
                                         Public [2] - 78:5, 78:15
 37:14, 47:15, 54:4, 54:15, 57:3,
                                         public [2] - 18:18, 50:4
 57:15, 60:17, 62:2, 62:7, 62:18,
                                         punch [1] - 27:2
 63:14, 63:18, 64:3, 64:14, 65:11,
                                         purchased [1] - 13:7
 67:14, 68:9, 69:4, 69:15, 70:11,
                                         pursuant [3] - 12:3, 23:14, 73:16
 71:11, 72:17, 73:17, 74:8, 76:7,
                                         put [4] - 50:17, 51:4, 74:19
76:14
Police [4] - 35:11, 35:13, 43:9,
44:7
                                         questions [7] - 10:15, 19:10, 30:7,
police [3] - 66:13, 70:10, 75:15
                                         31:7, 36:12, 54:3, 57:2
pond [1] - 43:10
                                         queuing [1] - 15:3
Porter [2] - 75:12, 76:3
                                         quite [1] - 40:1
position [1] - 9:10
POST [2] - 2:11, 32:11
Post [7] - 32:13, 38:18, 44:18,
                                         race [2] - 43:8, 65:1
46:5, 46:6, 46:9, 51:7
                                         races [1] - 43:13
potentially [2] - 13:3, 13:9
                                         Rachel [1] - 14:19
premise [2] - 15:1, 25:12
                                         radio [1] - 47:19
premises [9] - 8:7, 8:14, 30:11,
                                         rain [2] - 71:2, 72:3
 31:3, 37:12, 40:3, 47:6, 48:9,
                                         <u>rangers</u> [1] - 35:15
50:19
                                         rather [2] - 17:18, 38:15
prep [2] - 15:2, 25:13
                                         RE [1] - 1:3
present [2] - 28:7, 36:8
                                         <u>read</u> [3] - 23:15, 31:3, 77:11
<u>President</u> [1] - 60:1
                                         reading [1] - 77:2
PRESIDENT [2] - 2:14, 59:19
                                         Real [1] - 64:10
private [7] - 14:17, 15:4, 19:7,
                                         reallocation [1] - 9:7
59:14, 73:9, 73:10, 73:13
                                         really [3] - 22:10, 42:13, 45:15
problem [6] - 37:4, 41:17, 42:16,
                                         <u>rear</u> [3] - 30:11, 30:18, 30:19
42:19, 44:10, 46:13
                                         REASON [6] - 77:5, 77:6, 77:7, 77:8,
problems [1] - 46:7
                                         77:9, 77:10
proceedings [2] - 27:16, 78:9
                                         <u>reason</u> [3] - 8:4, 13:1, 77:2
process [4] - 8:10, 13:2, 13:6,
                                         <u>reasonable</u> [1] - 13:19
13:14
                                         receive [1] - 6:9
produce [1] - 29:15
                                         received [4] - 27:14, 61:3, 61:5,
prohibited [1] - 6:3
                                         62:10
proof [2] - 47:10, 75:16
                                         <u>recent</u> [1] - 61:11
Proof [1] - 10:13
                                         <u>recently</u> [2] - 26:8, 39:11
property [12] - 14:17, 15:4, 16:12,
                                         <u>reception</u> [3] - 63:11, 65:18, 72:13
19:7, 34:15, 36:16, 40:1, 45:13,
                                         record [22] - 7:8, 7:18, 8:5, 8:13,
 46:12, 59:14, 67:9, 73:10
```

```
8:19, 9:18, 12:6, 14:19, 15:6,
                                           <u>restrooms</u> [1] - 15:3
 16:14, 20:3, 23:10, 23:11, 25:12,
                                           <u>rice</u> [1] - 30:1
 25:17, 27:19, 33:5, 36:3, 52:3,
                                           <u>river</u> [1] - 36:6
 56:5, 77:12, 78:9
                                           road [1] - 65:1
RECORD [1] - 1:16
                                           roadway [1] - 45:5
<u>recorded</u> [12] - 5:16, 33:19, 65:4,
                                           ROBERT [4] - 53:19, 55:5, 55:9,
66:11, 68:5, 68:15, 69:12, 70:7,
                                            57:17
70:9, 70:16, 71:3, 72:5
                                           Robert [1] - 9:11
RECYCLING [3] - 2:9, 24:14, 56:2
                                           robert.williams@ehi.com [1] - 54:1
Recycling [4] - 24:16, 24:18, 55:16,
                                           Rogers [1] - 6:5
55:19
                                           <u>roll</u> [1] - 56:12
reflected [1] - 9:1
                                           <u>roll-offs</u> [1] - 56:12
<u>regard</u> [4] - 10:5, 24:9, 61:9, 62:12
                                           rolling [1] - 44:2
<u>regional</u> [1] - 52:6
                                           Roman [2] - 75:10, 76:4
regulations [2] - 10:3, 10:10
                                           Roof [1] - 72:14
Religious [2] - 75:11, 76:4
                                           <u>room</u> [1] - 30:17
<u>removal</u> [1] - 9:10
                                           Room [2] - 1:11, 5:8
<u>RENT</u> [2] - 2:13, 51:16
                                           route [1] - 56:15
rent [1] - 50:19
                                           Rubbish [1] - 35:14
Rent [2] - 51:18, 52:7
                                           <u>rules</u> [3] - 10:3, 10:10, 18:15
RENT-A-CAR [2] - 2:13, 51:16
                                           <u>run</u> [1] - 43:10
Rent-a-Car [2] - 51:18, 52:7
                                           running [1] - 43:8
repeat [1] - 20:6
                                           runs [1] - 43:12
<u>replace</u> [1] - 8:11
                                           rushed [1] - 44:5
Reporter [1] - 78:14
                                           RUTH [1] - 64:17
REPORTER [1] - 78:18
                                           Ruth [1] - 65:1
<u>REPORTERS</u> [1] - 1:16</u>
                                           RYAN [7] - 12:7, 12:9, 12:13, 12:16,
represent [1] - 25:19
                                           12:19, 13:12, 14:1
REPRODUCTION [1] - 78:17
                                           Ryan [1] - 12:8
<u>request</u> [2] - 28:9, 41:14
requested [1] - 71:6
<u>requesting</u> [1] - 13:13
                                           S-A-Y-A-K-B-A-E-V-A [1] - 17:6
required [3] - 66:13, 70:10, 75:15
                                           S-C-L-A-F-A-N-I [1] - 56:7
<u>residents</u> [1] - 16:5
                                           sale [2] - 8:15, 10:5
respect [1] - 9:5
                                           SAME [1] - 78:17
RESPECT [1] - 78:17
                                           SARAH [2] - 4:3, 72:10
respectfully [1] - 13:13
                                           Sarah [1] - 72:11
<u>respond</u> [1] - 61:13
                                           satisfy [1] - 36:5
response [17] - 11:2, 11:5, 19:16,
                                           saw [1] - 56:11
19:19, 24:19, 31:11, 31:14, 45:18,
                                           Sayakbaeva [1] - 17:1
 46:19, 47:3, 54:9, 54:12, 57:7,
                                           SCANLON [4] - 7:9, 7:12, 7:16, 11:14
 57:10, 62:6, 62:15, 63:4
                                           Scanlon [1] - 7:11
<u>restaurant</u> [4] - 8:1, 8:3, 16:4,
                                           <u>scheduled</u> [1] - 43:13
 26:10
                                           School [1] - 34:10
restaurants [2] - 15:16, 27:6
                                           school [1] - 34:11
```

```
22:4, 22:7, 22:10, 22:13, 22:19,
SCLAFANI [7] - 55:15, 56:6, 56:13,
                                          23:5, 23:8, 23:16, 24:11
 56:17, 58:2, 58:6, 58:10
                                         <u>shop</u> [1] - 29:14
screen [1] - 60:5
screening [1] - 60:8
                                         short [2] - 13:8, 42:2
seasonal [1] - 14:16
                                         shorter [1] - 50:9
                                         Shorthand [1] - 78:14
seat [1] - 58:2
                                         show [2] - 68:16, 70:9
seated [1] - 7:13
seating [5] - 14:16, 15:3, 15:4,
                                         sic [1] - 73:9
19:4, 25:8
                                         Sidney [1] - 69:11
seats [2] - 14:17, 18:11
                                         sign [1] - 48:18
second [3] - 7:1, 25:1, 55:19
                                         Sign [1] - 77:3
Section [2] - 12:4, 73:16
                                         signed [1] - 44:8
see [7] - 18:10, 23:2, 32:3, 33:18,
                                         similar [2] - 16:3, 29:16
40:18, 44:6, 57:1
                                         simple [1] - 29:16
seeking [4] - 8:10, 33:10, 36:15,
                                         site [1] - 29:10
 38:3
                                         sitting [1] - 30:4
seldom [1] - 35:10
                                         six [8] - 13:17, 14:4, 35:19, 39:8,
sell [4] - 27:9, 29:7, 41:5, 59:11
                                         41:10, 41:16, 52:1
sells [1] - 26:14
                                         skip [1] - 59:16
send [1] - 50:18
                                         so.. [1] - 46:14
<u>Sennott</u> [1] - 74:15
                                         Solicitor [6] - 61:8, 61:15, 61:16,
sent [1] - 61:11
                                         62:4, 62:6, 62:14
September [13] - 60:9, 65:19, 68:17,
                                         someone [4] - 8:13, 29:8, 42:1,
68:18, 71:1, 71:2, 72:3, 73:10,
                                         56:17
73:11, 75:13
                                         Somerville [1] - 43:8
septic [1] - 43:1
                                         sometimes [2] - 8:3, 41:19
Sergeant [1] - 60:12
                                         soon [1] - 8:17
serve [1] - 37:12
                                         sorry [3] - 48:7, 49:16, 59:17
<u>serves</u> [1] - 42:11
                                         sort [1] - 60:8
service [6] - 5:11, 8:15, 10:5,
                                         sound [2] - 36:8, 71:8
15:11, 16:3, 32:7
                                         sous [2] - 29:8, 29:11
set [2] - 78:8, 78:10
                                         space [5] - 15:2, 15:3, 18:7, 39:15,
setup [1] - 16:3
                                         41:12
seven [4] - 14:18, 17:19, 18:2,
                                         speaks [1] - 34:12
 25:10
                                         Special [4] - 27:15, 65:7, 67:7,
shares [1] - 9:7
                                         72:7
SHEET [1] - 77:1
                                         specific [1] - 74:18
sheet [2] - 77:3
                                         specifically [2] - 42:10, 62:12
SHEMTOV [2] - 3:5, 64:6
                                         <u>spell</u> [7] - 7:8, 12:5, 15:5, 25:16,
<u>Shemtov</u> [1] - 64:8
                                         33:5, 52:2, 56:4
SHEN [2] - 3:8, 66:4
                                         spelling [1] - 17:3
Shen [1] - 66:6
                                         Spirulina [1] - 30:1
Shewaye [1] - 20:18
                                         <u>spot</u> [1] - 8:18
SHEWAYE [18] - 2:8, 20:16, 21:1,
                                         Square [5] - 27:17, 64:11, 68:5,
                                         72:2, 72:13
 21:4, 21:8, 21:12, 21:16, 21:19,
```

```
square [2] - 15:1, 25:13
                                          support [2] - 27:18, 40:11
<u>ss</u> [1] - 78:4
                                          system [5] - 43:1, 65:4, 66:12,
                                           70:8, 72:6
staff [1] - 58:9
staffing [1] - 28:16
                                          <u>Szeto</u> [1] - 24:9
standing [3] - 18:13, 18:18, 30:5
<u>started</u> [1] - 44:2
                                          tape [2] - 5:16, 32:18
State [6] - 35:11, 35:13, 43:9,
                                          <u>taxi</u> [4] - 21:11, 21:16, 21:17,
44:7, 46:14, 51:2
                                           21:18
state [8] - 7:7, 12:5, 15:5, 25:16,
                                          team [1] - 64:9
33:4, 46:2, 52:2, 56:4
                                          team-building [1] - 64:9
statement(s [1] - 77:12
                                          <u>Technology</u> [1] - 64:11
<u>statements</u> [1] - 62:12
                                          tenant [2] - 18:9, 28:7
<u>States</u> [1] - 26:13
stating [1] - 16:13
                                          tend [2] - 50:5, 50:7
                                          terms [2] - 37:18, 37:19
stay [2] - 10:9, 28:13
                                          territory [1] - 53:6
Steven [2] - 25:11, 26:3
                                          Thailand [1] - 27:7
STEVEN [4] - 26:3, 26:4, 29:5, 30:13
                                          THE [7] - 1:16, 2:12, 32:12, 78:16,
still [1] - 41:9
                                           78:17, 78:17, 78:18
stock [1] - 7:5
                                          theater [1] - 68:17
stop [1] - 29:14
                                          theatrical [1] - 68:16
storage [7] - 15:2, 25:14, 30:11,
                                          therefor [1] - 77:2
30:12, 30:13, 30:19
store [4] - 53:1, 53:2, 53:4, 53:8
                                          therein [1] - 61:9
                                          third [1] - 13:10
straight [1] - 8:13
                                          THIS [1] - 78:16
Street [16] - 6:6, 7:4, 12:2, 14:15,
                                          three [7] - 29:13, 34:8, 42:5, 44:3,
16:1, 25:7, 26:2, 26:9, 27:12,
                                          51:5, 61:16, 73:5
63:12, 65:2, 65:19, 67:2, 69:11,
70:6, 70:19
                                          three-day [1] - 42:5
<u>Streets</u> [2] - 75:12, 76:3
                                          <u>TIME</u> [1] - 1:14
<u>stretch</u> [1] - 27:12
                                          TIPS [1] - 10:12
                                          TO [1] - 78:17
<u>Striders</u> [1] - 43:8
strolling [1] - 36:6
                                          today [8] - 37:19, 40:4, 40:7,
                                          40:14, 42:6, 53:5, 62:10, 76:17
stuff [3] - 24:10, 30:2, 44:9
                                          <u>Todd</u> [3] - 7:18, 8:11, 9:11
style [1] - 29:8
                                          Todd's [2] - 9:2, 9:3
<u>submit</u> [4] - 28:1, 38:1, 41:13, 50:2
                                          total [2] - 18:12, 30:4
submitted [4] - 8:9, 16:15, 28:5,
30:17
                                          totally [1] - 21:3
                                          <u>transcript</u> [3] - 77:2, 77:11, 77:12
subscribe [1] - 77:12
                                          <u>TRANSCRIPT</u> [1] - 78:16
substantial [1] - 27:5
suggest [2] - 50:16, 61:14
                                          transfer [1] - 7:5
suggesting [1] - 39:3
                                          transferring [1] - 13:9
suggestion [1] - 51:4
                                          Trash [1] - 35:14
summer [1] - 73:7
                                          truck [1] - 15:17
Sunday [1] - 42:2
                                          true [1] - 78:9
<u>superfoods</u> [1] - 29:19
                                          try [3] - 20:8, 44:13, 50:11
```

68:7, 72:7, 72:16, 73:14, 75:16 trying [1] - 40:18 <u>twice</u> [1] - 50:8 **Two** [1] - 25:15 **WAGAMAMA** [2] - 11:16, 11:17 two [5] - 15:16, 42:4, 50:3, 50:10, Wagamama [3] - 11:19, 12:1, 12:9 73:5 <u>wait</u> [1] - 57:19 **type** [4] - 35:19, 36:8, 39:19, 48:1 <u>waiver</u> [1] - 6:6 typographical [1] - 16:10 Walden [1] - 65:2 walls [1] - 48:10 **WALSH** [1] - 3:12 unbeknownst [1] - 43:14 **UNDER** [1] - 78:17 wants [1] - 42:1 UNIDENTIFIED [1] - 59:3 warning [3] - 6:10, 6:11, 6:17 <u>United</u> [1] - 26:12 Warren [2] - 75:12, 76:3 **UNIVERSITY** [1] - 66:5 **wastewater** [1] - 24:16 <u>university</u> [1] - 52:14 water [2] - 29:11, 45:6 University [3] - 66:9, 69:10, 69:13 water-based [1] - 29:11 **UNLESS** [1] - 78:17 websites [1] - 50:17 unopened [1] - 38:15 Wednesday [1] - 5:6 week [7] - 8:8, 8:18, 18:1, 18:2, <u>up</u> [6] - 10:9, 24:10, 46:1, 50:13, 51:12, 55:18 29:13, 50:5, 50:6 upcoming [1] - 40:7 week's [1] - 62:13 weeks [4] - 44:4, 50:3, 50:7, 50:10 <u>ups</u> [1] - 43:2 <u>upstairs</u> [2] - 34:3, 58:1 weeks' [1] - 51:5 **usual** [1] - 6:10 **WEILU** [2] - 3:8, 66:4 <u>Weilu</u> [1] - 66:6 **WHEREOF** [1] - 78:10 <u>vacated</u> [1] - 26:8 **whole** [1] - 43:9 vacation [2] - 43:5, 44:4 WILLIAM [3] - 4:2, 56:9, 71:16 <u>vapor</u> [1] - 29:9 William [2] - 56:8, 71:18 **Vassal** [1] - 71:1 Williams [3] - 53:4, 53:18, 55:3 <u>vehicles</u> [2] - 51:19, 52:1 WILLIAMS [4] - 53:19, 55:5, 55:9, venture [1] - 26:12 57:17 <u>Vicente</u> [2] - 1:11, 5:8 wine [10] - 12:2, 63:10, 65:17, <u>victualer</u> [1] - 67:1 66:7, 67:3, 72:12, 73:8, 73:15, victualler [4] - 7:3, 12:2, 14:15, 74:6, 75:11 Winsor [1] - 34:10 25:7 vide [2] - 29:8, 29:11 **WITNESS** [1] - 78:10 **VIOLATION** [2] - 2:2, 5:18 woman's [1] - 20:3 violation [3] - 6:7, 6:10, 6:16 workers [1] - 16:5 violations [1] - 6:1 works [1] - 43:10 **visual** [1] - 70:8 write [1] - 23:15 vote [25] - 6:10, 11:6, 20:1, 24:2, www.reportersinc.com [1] - 1:17 24:4, 31:15, 37:19, 40:4, 41:15, 47:5, 47:7, 50:4, 54:13, 57:11, 60:13, 62:12, 65:8, 67:6, 67:11, year [5] - 12:15, 12:16, 39:8,

```
39:18, 41:11

years [9] - 13:8, 35:1, 37:10,
38:19, 39:3, 39:5, 43:7, 43:11,
46:7

Yellow [1] - 22:19

yup [1] - 55:5
```

ZAMBRERO [4] - 2:10, 2:10, 25:3, 25:4
Zambrero [2] - 25:5, 25:6

<u>Zealand</u> [1] - 27:6 <u>Zoning</u> [1] - 27:14